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Office of the Federal Auditor General

— Audit Services Corporation
- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
| TO THE MANAGEMENT OF

ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

R We have audited the financial statements of Ethiopian Sugar corporation (the
Corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020,
and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, Statement of Changes

> In equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial

et statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for
— Qualified Opinion section of our report, the accompanying financial statements present
fairly, in all material réspects, the financial position of the Corporation as 30 June 2020
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
= with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

L Basis for Qualified Opinion

3 1. The Sugar Corporation Import account (01-12500-6000) exhibits a material long-
standing outstanding balance of ETB 266,000,090 dating back to the 2014 fiscal
year, persisting without resolution in the subsequent financial statements of the
> SIDF. This balance is obscured in the import financial statement that indicates a
lack of proper accounting treatment, raising concerns regarding the accuracy and
completeness of the financial reporting.

2. We have identified notable deficiencies within the inventory management system
of the Corporation, which demand immediate attention. Such as:

» The inventory cost flow assumptions as policy is not consistent throughout the
corporation. in consequence the value of inventory reported in the statement of
financial position is the sum of inventory valued at weighted average method in
Kesem and inventory valued at first in first out method in Metehara, Wonji Shoa
and Fincha Sugar Factories. Weak inventory system has result in full provision
of inventories in Tendaho and Welkait Sugar Projects.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

= TO THE MANAGEMENT OF

ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)

Basis for Qualified Opinion(continued)
We observed the absence of financial stock cards. This resulted in discrepancies
between the physical inventory count and the ledger balance. As evidenced,
there is difference of ETB 312,428,552 between the recorded inventory and the
actual inventory count the latter is more in amount. This variance has been
accounted for under Cost of goods sold, plantation, and administrative expenses,
necessitating further investigation. The lack of financial stock cards not only
hinders the company’s ability to effectively track inventory but also
compromises the reliability and completeness of portion allotted to Cost of
goods sold, plantation, and administrative expenses. Consequently, the
adjustment of ETB 312,428,552 in the prorated balance for these accounts has
not been verified for audit purposes.

4
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* For an industry like the sugar sector, which typically encompasses a myriad of
inventory line items. We identified a concerning practice of consolidating
various inventory items into aggregated sums, instead of providing detailed
breakdowns, at Arjo Sugar Factory, Kessem Sugar Factory, and Tana Beles
sugar projects. This practice hinders accurate inventory tracking, cost analysis,

— and effective management.

-

4

- | = For an industry like the sugar sector, which typically encompasses a myriad of
inventory line items, for instance Arjo Sugar Factory has adopted a practice of
consolidating inventory items into aggregated sums. However, Arjo keeps
= inventory items on a lump sum basis. For example, a general store items worth
ETB 100,746,095 (ETB 85,210,605 in 2017) was amalgamated and accounted
for as a single line as general store item.

= The Corporation has consumable inventories and goods in transit worth of ETB
553,062,883 consisting long outstanding and slow-moving inventories, which
- have been increasing from year to year but are not measured at lower cost or net
| ' realizable value. Despite this fact, the provision for stock obsolescence showed
no movement over the last three years, overstating the value of inventory with
an amount that should have been accounted as impairment on stock yearly.
Moreover, an inventory account consists of items with abnormal balances which
= is caused by inappropriate accounting on which the management has not taken
investigative action.

=3 Consequently, we were unable to determine the completeness and accuracy of stock
& goods in transit and cost of sales shown on the statement of financial position and
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income at ETB 5,790,184,061
and ETB 9,929,563,760 respectively.

l

=1

3. There was no system of internal control over the accounting of intercompany
accounts on which we could rely for the purposes of our audit. As a result, the Inter-
company receivable and Inter-company payable accounts on the branches’ financial
statement did not match the Inter- company payable and Inter-company receivable
of other factories or projects. -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MANAGEMENT OF

ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)
Basis for Qualified Opinion(continued)

-In the process of elimination of the intercompany receivable and payable the
residual figure worth of ETB 90,021,480 is debited to Sugar Industry Development
Fund account (Equity account) account without considering the economics of the
transactions. Moreover, lack of internal control over the accounting of funding the
Sugar Industry Development Fund account on the statement of financial position of
each branch do not agree with the balance at the Group level. In the process of
eliminating this account net amount of ETB 2,049,282 is debited to the Head office
account (equity account).

Therefore, the equity account entitled Head office account balance of ETB
17.879.927,787 is understated with the sum of the above stated figure.

4.

wn

The financial statements reflect advance payments to contractors as per Note 16,
amounting to ETB 14,872,745,556 with ETB 7,971,912,333 (54%) being impaired.
This indicates a deficiency in the internal control system governing the tracking and
recovery of advance payments. Given that these funds represent public money and
remain unsettled, we would typically anticipate legal actions or appropriate measures
to address these outstanding advances.

_We have identified notable deficiencies within the cost accounting system of the

corporation which demand immediate attention. Such as:

« The absence of a cost accounting System resulted in the cost of sugarcane in in
Arjo Sugar factory, amounting to ETB 87,038,034 (1,110,462 tons), being
calculated based on the proportion of harvested sugar to the total agricultural
area, without accounting for depreciation. This approach lacked the necessary
controls to ensure proper accounting for inventory consumption and other related
production costs. This lack of traceability hinders the company's ability to
accurately track inventory usage and associated costs, potentially impacting the
reliability of production cost calculations.

= It is difficult to determine the costs associated with producing 193,630 Quintals
for the year in Kessem sugar Corporation. Expenses, inclusive of the cost of sales,
have been aggregated under the general and administrative expense category.
For instance, other expenses consisting of various product costs amounting ETB
175,732,596 that should have been classified and allotted as overhead cost and
incorporated in cost of inventory, are accounted as expenses totally. Moreover,
we were unable to adequately relate the amount of issued inventory to the sugar
cane field where it was used and to the associated production costs. This lack of
traceability hinders the company's ability to accurately track inventory usage and
associated costs, potentially impacting the reliability of production cost
calculations.

(e




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
= TO THE MANAGEMENT OF

ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)

Basis for Qualified Opinion(continued)
- * The absence of a cost accounting system resulted in the cost of sugarcane in
OMO 11 Sugar factory. For instance, we were unable to adequately relate the
amount of inventory issued to the sugar cane fields, where it was used and to the

~ associated production costs. This lack of traceability hinders the company's
| ability to accurately track inventory usage and associated costs, potentially
- impacting the reliability of production cost calculations. Consequently, we were

unable to delineate the costs linked with the production of 62,155 Quintals for
the year and inhibit our confidence in relying on the total cost of goods sold
P figure, amounting to ETB 318,683,980.

» The absence of a cost accounting system resulted in the cost of sugarcane in
e OMO 1II Sugar factory. For instance, we were unable to adequately relate the
amount of issued inventory to the sugar cane field where it was used and to the
associated production costs. In addition, in the fair value determination process
— the factory utilizes a constant value per hectare amount ETB 35,296.81 since
2019 fiscal year. This lack of traceability hinders the company's ability to
accurately track inventory usage and associated costs, potentially impacting the
—— reliability of production cost calculations. Consequently, we were unable to
delineate the costs linked with the production of 52,530 Quintals for the year and
b | inhibits our confidence in relying on the total cost of goods sold. figure,
| amounting to ETB 237,694,804.
Therefore, due to the lack of a robust internal control framework, we do not have

b | confidence in relying on the total Cost of sales figure, which amounts to ETB
2 | 8.573,028,777.

- 6. The property, plant and equipment consisting of CIP-tissue culture for an amount of

ETB 74,185,564 has exhibited no movement over a significant period and has not

’_— been capitalized. This indicates a potential lack of asset utilization by the

- Corporation. As a result, we were unable to ascertain whether adjustments have been

found necessary in respect of property, plant and equipment shown on the statement
r of financial position at ETB 142,831,696,435.

7. Included in trade and other receivables is receivable from Commercial Bank of

Ethiopia amounting to ETB 71,464,864 (70,540,004 in 2019). We have obtained no

l_: sufficient and appropriate audit evidence that this balance is recoverable. In

consequence we were unable to determine whether any adjustment might have been

found necessary in respect of Trade and other receivables shown on the statement of
financial position at ETB 1,754,168,000.

J

I

8. Despite the fact that a provision of ETB 400,630,800 was held in advance and
prepayment accounts of Wonji Sugar Factory for the out growers’, a substantial
portion of this provision was allocated for the sugar cane plantation damaged during

— political unrest in 2010 E.C. and for some farms that unilaterally terminated their
contracts with the Corporation. Given that these funds represent public money and
- | remain unsettled, we would typically anticipate legal actions or appropriate measures

to address these outstanding advances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MANAGEMENT OF
ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)

Basis for Qualified Opinion(continued)

9. We identified significant deficiencies in the internal control over cash and cash
equivalents in Arjo Sugar factory. These weaknesses limit our ability to form an
opinion on the reliability of the reported cash and cash equivalents balance of ETB
21,805,757 in the factory.

10. The revenue shown in the statement of profit or loss & other comprehensive income
of ETB 9,929,563,760 is the cumulative total of the revenue recorded in the separate
records of the head office and the sugar factories when the produce is put under the
control of the head office and is measured at transfer prices determined by the Board
of Directors of the Corporation. This constitutes a departure from IFRS which
requires that a sale be recognized at the transaction price on delivery to the customer.
In consequence we were unable to satisfy ourselves that the revenue shown in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is correctly stated.

11. As discussed in Note 28.6 (Capital management) of the notes to the financial
statements, gearing (Debt to Equity ratio) of the Corporation stood at 121% (115%
in 2020) which imply the Corporation has larger proportion of debt than equity, so
would not be able to pay down its debt unless serious measures are taken in this
respect.

12. Paid up capital of the Corporation is summation of the carrying amount of net asset
of each of the existing factories amounting ETB 6,042,512,614 upon establishment
until it is increased by ETB 8,040,511,876 through in kind contribution by the
government as discussed on Note 19 of the notes to the financial statements. This
contribution in kind is represented by Tendaho and Kessem sugar development
dams. However, these dams were transferred to Ethiopian Construction Works
Corporation by Regulation no 366/2015 by the Corporation’s mandate stated on the
regulation (Article 5 Sub article 3).

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Enterprise in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Ethiopia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with those requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

e




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MANAGEMENT OF

ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)
Basis for Qualified Opinion(continued)

Emphasis of Matter

e We draw attention to Note 34 to the financial statements which describes the going
concern uncertainties of Tendaho Sugar Factory Project Office indicating the civil
war in the Northern region, the bad whether condition (EI Nino effect), the
subsequent transfer of movable properties to other factories and projects of the
Corporation and termination of most of the staff have raised uncertainties on the
going concern of the Factory project office. Our opinion is not qualified in this
respect.

e We also draw attention to this note again (Note 34) to the financial statements which
also describes the going concern uncertainties of Wolkait Sugar Development
Project indicating a need of significant financial investment for completing the
Factory and related infrastructure, including plantation. Our opinion is not qualified
in this respect.

e We draw attention to the audit report on the financial statements of Arjo Sugar
Factory a component included in the Combined Financial Statements. The audit of
Arjo Sugar Factory resulted in an adverse opinion due to material misstatements
related to cash and: bank balance, deficiency in in the control environment in
inventory, cost of sales and non-financial assets. However, we have determined that
this matter is not material to the Combined Financial Statements as a whole.

Responsibilities of the Factory’s Management and the Corporation’s Management
for the Financial Statements

The Factory’s and Project’s Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the Factory’s Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Corporation’s Management is responsible for overseeing the Factory’s and
Project’s financial reporting process. The Corporation’s Management is also
responsible for assessing the Factory’s ability to continue as a going concern, ensuring
that disclosures are made, as applicable, of matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Corporation’s Management knows of
an intention either to liquidate the Factory or to cease operations, or knows that there is
no realistic alternative but to do so. :

A5
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MANAGEMENT OF
ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Factory’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Factory’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Factory to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a _nanae
presentation. Repubiic o,

ie




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MANAGEMENT OF
ETHIOPIAN SUGAR INDUSTRY GROUP (continued)

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

We communicate with Corporation Management regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Corporation Management with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Corporation Management, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Woizero Banchiayehu Tamrat.

-

26 September 2024
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

In compliance with the Article 14(8) of the Public Enterprises Proclamation No. 25/1992, the Management of
the Corporation (hereafter referred to as the Management) of Ethiopian Sugar Corporation (hereafter referred to
as the Corporation) is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements that fairly present the
sate of affairs of the Corporation at the end of the financial year and of the profit for loss and cash flows for the
vear in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) , the Commercial Code, the
Financial Reporting Proclamation No. 847/2014, and the requirement of Article 12(8) of the public Enterprises

Proclamation No. 25/1992. The Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation.

The management is also responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and the preparation an
integrity of the annual financial statements and related information. To enable the Management to meet these
responsibilities it set standards and implement systems of internal control, accounting and information systems.
Management is responsible for the systems of internal control. These are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance as to the reliability of the annual financial statements and to adequately safeguard, verify and

maintain accountability of assets and to prevent and detect material misstatements and loss.

The internal audit function of the Corporation serves management and the Board by performing an independent
evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management, internal controls, financial reporting
mechanisms and record, information systems and operations, safeguarding of assets and adherence to laws and

regulations.

The management is responsible that the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
The management is of the opinion that the Corporation has adequate resources to continue in operation for the

foreseeable future based on forecasts and available cash resources and accordingly the annual financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. It is the responsibility of the external auditors to

express an opinion on the annual financial statements.

Signed on behalf of the management by:

& Akara
MWeyo Roba. _
y/- Chief Execufttve Officer - |
e Finance Department
26 September 2024
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Ethiopian Sugar Corporation
Financial Statements

Report of Management

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Mangement has pleasure of presenting their report on the affairs of Ethiopian Sugar Corporation (‘the Corporation” ) together with
the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 to the Boardof Director of Ethiopian Sugar Corporation. This report
discloses the financial performance and state of affairs of the Corporation.

Incorporation and address

Ethiopian Sugar Corporation ("the Corporation") is a principally engaged in production of sugar. The Corporation was established
on 29 October 2010 in accordance with regulation number 192/2010 and the provisions of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of
1960.

Principal activities

I to grow sugarcane and other sugar yielding crops;

2 to process and produce sugar, sugar products, sugar by-products and products of sugar by-products;

3 1o sell its products and by-products in the domestic and export markets;

4 to cause the undertaking of feasibility studies, design preparation, technology selection and negotiation, erection and

. commissioning of new sugar development and expansion projects; in cooperation with the relevant organs,

5 1o undertake studies and research in the field of sugar cane plantation and sugar production technologies and implement
useful results thereof: in cooperation with capable domestic enterprises, to cause the designing and fabrication of
machineries and spare parts required by public sugar factories;

6 1o possess. in accordance with the law, and develop lands required for its operations;

to encourage and support sugar cane growers who are supplying their cane products to public sugar factories;

8 in line with directives and policy guidelines issued by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development. to sell and
pledge bonds and to negotiate and sign loan agreements with local and intentional financial sources:

e |

The Corporation is principally engaged in Sugar Manufacturing in Ethiopia.

Operating results
The Corporation's results for the year ended 30 June 2020 are set out on page 10. The profit for the year has been transferred to

retained earnings. The summarized results are presented below.

30 June 2020 30 June 2019

ETB ETB

Revenue 9,929.563,760 8,872,878,586
Profit before income tax (11,102,262,358) (14,594,834,801)
Income tax expense 121,888,560 38,032,044
Total compressive income (loss) for the year 510!980e73!‘798! !14!556£02!‘757!

Weyo Roba Akako
Chief Executive Officer

v e
2o sy
CEO i

Paulos Moja
26 September 2024 CFO
Addis Ababa. Ethiopia




ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ANH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENHEH 30 JUNE 2020

2020 2019
= Notes ETB ETB
Revenue 4 9,929,563,760 8.872.878,586
Cost of sales 6 (8,573,028,777) (8,329,720,902)
= Gross profit 1,356,534,984 543,157,683
Other operating income 5 155,274,748 218,943,074
- General & administrative 7 (2,003,078,765) (2,674,940,802)
Foreign currency exchange loss 274 (5,306,924,328) (3.017.540,068)
e Fair value gain (loss) cane and fruit 13.2 251,411,629 (1,170,691,297)
Loss on cane at fair Value 132 (31,983,646) (125,367,275)
1 Impairment Loss - PPE 11 § (4,022,047,511)
Provision for bad debt expense 15,16,17 (700,123,581) (87,782,488)
Provision for stock obscelesence 18 (52,421,697) (43.886,058)
Provision expense - Standing Cane 13.2 (216,384,784) (31,707,226)
Operating profit (6,547,695,441) (10,411,861,967)
Finance costs/charges 8 (4,554,566,917) (4,182,972,833)
Profit before tax (11,102,262,358) (14,594,834,801)
Income tax expense 9 121,888.560 38,032,044
Profit for the year (10,980,373,798) (14,556,802,7
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
= ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss:
Remeasurement gain loss on retirement benefits obligations
29a 8,179,699 8,721,74
- Total comprehensive income for the year (10,972,194,099) (14,548,081,011)
12
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A NE 2020

Notes
Assets
Non-current assets
Property. plant and equipment 11
Right use of asset - Land 12
Right use of asset - Office 12
Bearer plant 13.1
Investment in ESISC and MSF
Current assets
Trade and other receivable 15
Stock & goods in transit 18
Biological Asset - Agricultural 13.2
Biological Asset - Animal 13.2
Tax receivable 17
Advance and prepayments 17
Cash and cash equivalents 14
Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Paid up - capital 19
Capital contribution 27
Contribution for capital expenditure 26
Sugar Industry Development Fund 21
Reserve for SIDF : 24
Asset revaluation reserve 23
Accumulated loss 20
Other reserve 25
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Long term loan 274
Employee benefit obligation 29
Deferred tax liability 10
Current liabilities
Trade and other payable 27
Retention Payable 27.3
Interest payable 27
Long term loan-current maturity 27.4
Sugar development fund payable 27
Tax payable 30
Contract liability 31
Accrual 31
Provision 31

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

2020 2019
ETB ETB
142,831,698,760 122,978.559.844
364,375,325 364,503,135
- 300,368
912,117,966 966,252,994
3,992,000 3,992,000
124,313,608.343
1,754,168,000 1,206,504,342
5,790,307,459 6,761,563,406
3,841,884,967 3,230,210,323
- 3,299
3,942,789,946 3,647,632,716
7,505,161,375 8,280,004,749
1,696,321,460 3,356,382,398
24,530,633,208 26,482,301,233
168,642,817,262 150,795,909,576_

14,083.024,490

14,083.024,490

393,286,376 418,273,766
101,054,623 101,054,623
17,879,927,787 18,666,049,921
(9,218,250,273) (7,290,739,206)
11,977,353,299 11,977,353,299
(64,002,820.014) (55,722,648.339)
11,975,728 3,796,029
(28,774,447,984) (17,763,835,417)

161,609,606,897
44,375,848
3,935,086.109

132,505,301,565
43,827,359
4,056,974,669

165,589,068,854

136,606,103,593

17,251,482,720 15,472.216,337
2,389.420,603 2,190,924,265
3,448,651.923 2,726,675.328
6,558,796,911 8.823.693.834
200,991,991 167,514,534
1,095,872,342 1,215,203,864
207,604,194 128,902,226
453,790,821 729,351,602
221,584,888 499,159,410
31,828,196,392 31,953,641,400
197,417.265,246 168,559,744,993
168,642,817,262 150,795,909,576
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
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Non-cash adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment and Bearer Plant

Financing activities

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Loan Transfer to LAMAC
Grant

Net Cash transfer

1,996,690,676

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
2020 2019
ETB ETB
Operating activities
Profit before tax (11,102,262,358) (14,594,834,801)

2,057,743,276

Impairment ( Reversal ) of PPE and Bearer Plant - 4,022,047,511
Provision (Reversal of provision) for Loss of Plantation 216,384,784 31,707,226
Fair Value Change on biological Asset (403,995,068) 1,200,374,646
Stock Obsolescence 52,421,697 43,886,058
Bad Debt Expense 700,123,581 88,696,071
Change Stock Shortage E -
Amortization of the right use of assets 428.178 13,832,083
Severance expense (Current service and interest) 8,728,187 11,290,065
(8,531,480,323) (7,125,257,864)
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease (Increase) in trade and other receivables (953,634,605) (522,883,728)
Decrease (Increase) in advance and prepayment 185,533,510 266,504,891
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories ' 918,834,249 470,309,983
Decrease (Increase) in Biological Assetl (424,061,060) (1,115,464,723)
Increase (Decrease) in trade and other payables (125,445,008) 8,717,130,210
Net cash flows from operating activities (8,930,253,238) 690,338,769
Investing activities
Investment in property, plant and equipment and sugar development (21,662,923,470) (16,318,531,624)
Disposal proceeds (0)
Expenditure on bearer plant (132,771,095) (258,763,430)
Lease payment - -
Investment in ESISC and MSF - =
Net cash flows used in investing activities (21,795,694,565) (16,577,295,054)

37,563,935,725
(8,459.630,392)

2,700,202,123

22.881,989,175
(6,453,729,327)

1,254,383,815

Additional fund from SIDF for project expansion (786,122,134) 1,967,883,170
Contribution to SIDF (1,927,511,067) (2,064,709,048)
Capital contribution (24.987.390) (25,438,525)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities 29,065,886,865 17,560,379,259
Net increase/ ( decrease ) in cash and cash equivalents (1,660,060,938) 1,673,422,975
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July, 3,356,382 398 1,682,959,424
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 1,696,321,460 3,356,382,398
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1.General information

The present “Sugar Corporation™ with a vision of executing sugar development activities at a large scale came into existence
on October, 2010 by the Council of Ministers Regulation No.192/2010 replacing the former Ethiopian Sugar Development
Agency.

Currently, with the Regulation No. 916/2015 instituted to determine the authority and practice of FDRE Executive Bodies,
the Corporation is operating under a Board of Management while it is organized under Ministry of Government Enterprises.
The corporation is established at sum of the carrying amount of the net asset of the each factories at the date of incorporation.

At the time of the establishment, there were 3 factories and 1 project namely
Wonji shoa Sugar Factory
Metehara Sugar Factory
Fincha Sugar Factory
Tendaho Sugar Factory (project phase)

Immediately after the re-establishment, the corporation has undergone series of expansion and modernization projects such as
upgrading the existing factories Wonji and Fincha Sugar Factory. Through time, various activities have been carried out to
build additional sugar factories. Currently, the corporation has 8 projects in progress each at different stages. The projects
include

Omo —Kuraz Sugar development project — LILIILV
Welkayit Sugar Development project
Tana Belles Sugar Development projects — 1 & I1

In 2017 . the Arjo Dedessa and Kessem have been fully completed and began operation. where as Omo II nd Omo III have
been complted and started operation in 2020 and 2021 respectively. The completation of these four projects has increased
the total number of oneration factories in to Seven.

The corporation's place of business is Addis Ababa, Kirkos Sub-city, Woreda 08, Kia-Med University College PLC
Building. It also has factories and projects in different parts of the country.

2. Significant accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation and Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). They have been prepared under the assumption that the
Corporation operates on a going concern basis.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical cost
convention, except for revaluation of properties as deemed cost, and equity investments at fair value. Items included in the
financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Corporation
operates ( *the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ethiopian Birr (“ETB”) which is the
Corporation’s functional currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It
also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Corporation’s accounting policies.
Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the assumptions changed.
The management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Corporation's financial statements
therefore present the financial position and results fairly.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity. or areas where assumptions and estjps¥e
the financial statements, are disclosed in note 3. )
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Corporation in preparing its financial statements:
2.2.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Corporation presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

* It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
The Corporation classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

2.2.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Corporation.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. The Corporation uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

« Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Corporation determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Corporation”s Management determine the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
financial instrument at FVTPL financial assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures. the Corporation has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

2.2.3 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Corporation and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The outcome of the transaction can be measured reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably;

It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Corporation;
when the service delivered at the balance date can be measured reliably; and

The costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction cannot be estimated reliably, revenue should be recognized only to the extent of the
expenses recognized that are recoverable,

The Corporation recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to
its customer. The transfer occurs at the time when the customer obtains control / Corporation of the good or service. This is
determined by assessing, based on the terms of the contract entered into, the extent of the performance that is required of the
Corporation and determining whether the goods and services to be delivered are distinct. Goods and services are considered
to be distinct if the customer can benefit from the good or service either on its own or together with resources that are readily
available to the customer and the Corporation’s promise to transfer the good or service can be identified separately from
other promises made in the contract.

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Corporation follows a 5-step process:
1. Identifying the contract with a customer-

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

5. Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Revenue is recognized at a point in time when the Corporation satisfies performance obligations by transferring the
promised goods or services 1o its customers. As the period of time over which such delivery occurs is short, the revenue from
the contract is accounted for on the basis of delivery at a point in time.

The Corporation recognizes contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of unsatisfied performance obligations
(i.e. Advance received for future delivery ) and reports these amounts as other non financial liabilities in the statement of
financial position.

Similarly, if the Corporation satisfies a performance obligation before it receives the consideration (i.e. Delivery of service or
goods for credit), the Corporation recognizes either a contract asset or a receivable in its statement of financial position,
depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required before the consideration is due.

The corporation’s revenue is largely made up of “farming” revenue in the form of sugar , deciduous fruit, bananas and by
products. In all cases , revenue is recognised when the sugar is delivered to the customer. this would be on receipt of a
delivery report from stock controller. Other operations revenue comprises revenue from the sale of grain, which is largely
immaterial in isolation. Nevertheless, revenue on these operations is recognised in accordance with the principles of I[FRS 15
above.
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Sugar Industry Development Fund (SIDF)

The Sugar Industry Development fund is established by Proclamation NO. 415/2004. Financial sources of the fund is sale
proceeds of sugar in the domestic market by the corporation in excess of ETB 1,026 per quintal weighting 100kgs (One
Thousand Twenty Six Birr ) and is expected to be further increase with the coming in to effect of a directive which is
currently on a draft stage.

Transfer of sale proceed to the fund is recorded as a reduction from revenue and refund of the amount back to the corporation
for project works shall be recognized directly in equity. Any Proceeds of sale that is attributed to the fund yet not transferred
should be reported as payable to SIDF,

Interest income/expense

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost interest income or expense is recorded using the effective interest
rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income
is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss.

2.2.4 Foreign currencies

.Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Corporation operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Ethiopian Birr (“ETB”) which
is the Corporation’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Corporation at their respective functional currency spot rate at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, if
any, are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date, Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.

2.2.5 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted, or
substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Corporation operates and generates taxable income.
Taxable profit differs from profit reported in the income statement because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Corporation’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Tax paid in advance before the due date such as those withheld by the customer for sale of goods is recognized as
withholding receivable and offset against the current income tax payable as computed in accordance with the Ethiopian tax
proclamation number 979/2016.at the year end.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity if any is recognized in equity and not in the statement of
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and it establishes provisions where appropriate. The tax consequences
of dividends should be recognized in P&L when a liability to pay the dividend is recognized.
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION

.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—— N
ES Deferred tax
! Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
} 6 Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences: including the carry forward of unused tax credits
- and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, The carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except When the
- deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
y 7 taxable profit or loss,
= Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from taxable and deductible temporary differences. The following events and
transaction of The Corporation gives rise to deferred tax;
* Property, plant and equipment;
B * Allowance for Stock obsolescence
* Allowance for doubtful debtors:
——

* Unrealized exchange gain or loss:
* Severance payment obligation;

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates and tax legislation that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Corporation, as at the end of the reporting period, expects to recover or settle the
carrying amount of these assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss if any is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

-

(.

Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes (Changes in deferred tax asset and liability) are recognized in profit or loss for the period, except
to the extent that the tax arises from a transaction or event which is recognized, in the same or a different period, to other
comprehensive income; or a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to items that are
credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income. Current tax and deferred taxes are
charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period,
directly in equity.

Value added tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount Value Added Tax (VAT), except:

*  Where the Value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in

which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable

* Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as par segiyables or payables
R in the statement of financial position.
—
|
-
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0

2.2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. PPE is stated at cost ,net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Costs capitalized to bearer assets (sugar cane roots, banana
palms, deciduous and macadamia trees) include all direct costs of land preparation and planting.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Corporation recognizes
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Corporation and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably . when the cost of a major inspection is included in the carrying amount of an item of PPE, the remaining
carrying amount of the previous inspection is derecognized. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the
profit or loss as incurred.

Construction-in-Process (CIP)

The corporation is undertaking series of expansion and modernization projects including construction of additional sugar
factories. land farm development as well as infrastructure (house, hospitals, road and school, irrigation system,
pipe).Engineering feasibility studies will be expensed when incurred. Professional external engineering and design activities
will be capitalized as construction-in-process when incurred to the extent such costs can be traced directly to a specific CIP
project. If a project is abandoned, the related engineering costs will be written off in the period in which the decision to
abandon the project is approved by management.

The CIP account will include the capitalized cost of materials, machinery, equipment, labour and outside services as well as
certain external engineering costs described under Engineering Costs. Costs accumulated in the CIP account will be
transferred to the appropriate fixed asset account when it is ready for intended use. When segments of a project are put into
operation one at a time, the estimated cost of each segment will be transferred to the fixed asset account. The estimated cost
will be adjusted to actual cost when final project expenditures are known,

Costs of testing whether the asset is functioning properly, after deducting the net proceeds from selling any items produced
while bringing the asset to that location and condition (such as samples produced when testing equipment);

A sugarcane plant is to be divided into two parts i.e. stubbles of previous crop (Ratoons) and the standing crop which is
grown on this root which is then harvested for further processing. Hence, Cane Roots (Ratoons) is a bearer biological asset
that is used in the production or supply of agricultural produce (Standing crops); and is expected to bear canes for more than
one period. Until matured, the costs of direct material, direct labour and applied overhead for sugarcane are charged to
Bearer Plant -Immature account i.e. Bearer Plant — Immature.

Once matured, the accumulated cost of the sugarcane shall be transferred to Bearer Plant-Mature account i.e. Bearer Plants —
mature — Sugarcane and is considered property, plant and equipment and is governed by IAS 16. Depreciation on matured
bearer biological asset becomes the costs of agricultural produce.
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iy EN

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets including those Property, plant
and equipment. The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:

Theoretical Useful Life (years)

Dam, Canals , and Irrigation 50 Years
Agricultural Equipment 10 years
Buildings 50 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Motor vehicles 10 years
Office equipment 7 years
Computer equipment 7 years
Sugar Cane roots 9 years
Deciduous fruit trees 20 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognized except for derecognized item of property, plant and equipment at opening IFRS Financial Position date which
do not satisfy the capitalization criteria which is directly charged to equity.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Assets costing less than Birr 2,000 each are expensed at the time of acquisition.

2.2.7 Leases

Right-of-use asset

The Corporation is party to lease arrangements over land and office buildings. The Corporation recognizes right-of-use assets
and the related liabilities at the commencement date for all lease arrangements that are entered into that convey the right to
control the use of identified assets for a period of time. The commencement date of the lease is the date when the lessor
makes the asset available for use by the Corporation.

The right-of-use assets are initially measured at the present value of the minimum lease payments, which comprises the
following:

* The amount of the initial measurement of the liability;

» All lease payments made at or before the commencement date of the lease, less any lease incentives provided to the
« All initial direct costs incurred by the Corporation in respect of the lease;

* An estimate of the costs that will be incurred by the Corporation for dismantling and restoring the leased asset by the
Corporation at the end of the lease term.

After the commencement date, the right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses and are adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

Amortization is calculated on a straight-line method over the term of the lease or the useful life of the asset, whichever is the
shorter. In the case of the lease hold land the cost is amortized over the lease period.

The Corporation acquired land, free of charge for indefinite period, long before the Land Lease proclamation comes to effect.
There are different improvements on the land holdings of the Corporation at different sites. The Land is valued by external
valuation expert considering the lease price for similar location. As the possession is for indefinite period, fréehold land is
not depreciated.
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

Lease liability

The lease is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date
including fixed payments, less any incentive payments that will be receivable by the Corporation from the lessor;

The lease payments are discounted using the Corporation’s incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition date, the
Corporation accounts for the lease liabilities by reducing the carrying amount to reflect payments made on the lease;
Minimum lease payments shall be apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge shall be allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents shall be charged as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

2.2.8 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is recognized in the statement
of profit or loss when it is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized
over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite
lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible
assets. ;

2.2.9 Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Corporation becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

I) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Corporation are classified, at initial recognition financial asset subsequently measured at amortized
cost or at fair value based on the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired. All financial assets are recognized
initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost.

Financial asset at amortized cost ( Loans and receivables )

This category is the most relevant to the Corporation such as Loans and receivables which are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such as
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating
expenses for receivables.

Trade receivables Comprises of amounts due from customer in respect of the sugars and byproducts sold in credit. If
collection is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are a classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets. Lifetime expected credit losses must be recomputed based on
the requirements of IFRS 9.For trade receivables or contract assets balance that do not contain a significant financing
component A provision matrix may be used to estimate ECL . The amount of the provision is recognized in the profit or loss.

23



ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
T

Equity instruments

Equity instruments such as investment in the shares of other entities are to be measured at Fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) , except for those equity instruments for which the entity has elected to report value changes in Other
comprehensive income (OCI). The Corporation will generally hold equity instruments that are classified as FVTPL,

Fair value determination

If the market for a financial asset is not active, the Corporation establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same and on
discounted cash flow analysis, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity specific
inputs.

Impairment of financial assets
Disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are summarized in the following notes:

* Accounting policy disclosures Below
* Financial assets Note 15
* Trade receivables Note 15.1

Impairment of financial asset shall be based on expected credit losses, resulting in the recognition of a loss allowance before
the credit loss is incurred. Under this approach, the corporation needs to consider current conditions and reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort when estimating expected credit
losses.

throughout the life of the receivable at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.As a practical expedient, a provision matrix may be
used to estimate ECL for these financial instruments. The matrix is to be set by management based on historical analysis and
reasonable judgment,

A provision matrix is applying the relevant loss rates to the trade receivable balances outstanding (i.e. a trade receivable aged
analysis). an entity would apply different loss rates depending on the number of days that a trade receivable is past due,
Depending on the diversity of its customer base, the entity would use appropriate groupings if its historical credit loss
experience shows significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments.

The Corporation assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event
"), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that the debtors or a of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults,

financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Corporation determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

24



—y e

ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
F Y N

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Loans, together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Corporation . If, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to finance costs in profit or loss.

i) Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost such
as at fair value through profit or loss and liabilities measured at amortized cost such as loans » borrowings, and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Corporation’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings,
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Loans and borrowings and trade payables

This is the category most relevant to the Corporation . After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Effective interest method is a method of

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss. This category
generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings,

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables are recognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the abligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the statement of financial position only if
there is a current enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and an intent to settle on a net basis, or to realize
the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financidl assets depends on their classification as described below :
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Loans and receivables

This category is the most relevant to the Corporation. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortization is included in the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers and agents for delivery of products . If collection is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are a classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets. A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Corporation will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognized in the profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments such as investment in the shares of other entities are to be measured at Fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL) . except for those equity instruments for which the entity has elected to report value changes in Other
comprehensive income (OCI). The Corporation will generally hold equity instruments that are classified as FVTPL.

Fair value determination

If the market for a financial asset is not active, the Corporation establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same and on
discounted cash flow analysis, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity specific

inputs.
Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Corporation’s cash management. Bank overdrafis (if any) are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:
» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

+  The Corporation has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either

(a) the Corporation has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Corporation has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Corporation has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and, to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of it, the asset is
recognized to the extent of its continuing involvement in it. In that case, the Corporation also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
it has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Corporation could be required to repay.
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2.2.10 Borrowing cost

Interest cost shall be included as a component of the historical acquisition cost of qualifying fixed assets constructed for the
Corporation’s own use (major construction or acquisition projects only). The Corporation defines qualifying assets as those
linked to projects with projected expenditure of greater than ETB 1,000,000 and where the expected period to bring assets
into use exceeds 6 Months. Assets in use or ready for use are not qualifying assets.

Where a loan is taken out specifically to finance the construction of an asset, the amount to be capitalized shall be the
interest payable on that loan less income earned on the temporary investment of the borrowings. If construction of a
qualifying asset is financed from an entity's general borrowings, the borrowing costs eligible to be capitalized shall be
determined by applying the weighted average general borrowings rate to the expenditure incurred on the asset.

2.2.11 Inventories

Inventory shall be recognized when the control to the goods passes to the Corporation. Title to goods passes from the seller
to the corporation in any manner and on any conditions explicitly agreed on by the parties. In the case of foreign purchased
item, such term included FOB, CIF and C & F where the transfer of risk and rewards occurred at different point in time. If no
conditions are explicitly agreed to by the parties, control of goods generally transfers from the seller to the corporation at the
time and place at which the seller completes its performance with reference to the physical delivery of the goods.

Cost of inventories includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Inbound freight costs should be included, but outbound freight should be excluded.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost of production

ESC shall determine the cost of production not for each batch or process, but it is calculated for a specific period, may it be a

quarterly or half yearly or yearly as the case may be. And thus, it is recommended that ESC should use normative cost
method/full absorption cost method.

ESC should use standard costing approach where ‘a pre-determined unit cost is used to account for movement of finished
goods during the period. On a quarterly or half yearly or yearly basis as the case may be, all inventory and cost of sales will
need to be trued up to actual value for IFRS reporting purposes. If the amount of under or over applied costs are significant ,
the proration of such costs among cost of sales , finished goods and WIP will be based on their proportion at the date.

i) Cost per ton of sugarcane consists of standard agricultural direct material costs, standard agricultural direct labour cost,
and standard agricultural overhead costs.

i) Cost per ton of bagged sugar consists of standard factory direct material costs, standard factory direct labour cost, and
standard factory overhead costs.

The allocation of fixed production overhead costs to inventories shall be based on the normal capacity of the production
facility. Actual production levels will be monitored relative to the planned volume. If production levels for the year fall
below acertain percentage to be decided by management from the planned level, this will be taken as a trigger that normal

production levels are not being achieved and a correction of the closing inventory value to current period expense will be
made
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Cost of sugar cane

Each Factory in ESC shall determine the cost of harvested cane for each field or plots of land identified by field or plot
number. Costs of direct materials, direct labour, and applied overhead incurred between the previous harvest and the current

harvest for the production of agricultural produce are considered the cost of production and debited to future crops (WIP) in
each plantation field identified by a ratoon account ID,

Using Process costing method. all costs will be accumulated for each stage of sugar production or process, and the cost per
unit of product is ascertained at each stage. of production by dividing the cost of each process by the normal output of that
process. Hence each major stage of the production process shall be designated as a cost centers,

At a certain stage in the Sugar processing plant, joint products (Raw sugar, Molasses, filter cake, and Bagasse) are separately

identifiable, emerging from a single process. Bagasse splits after milling in the juice extraction plant (split-off point) and
£0€s 1o steam generation plant to be used as an input for steam generation. However, molasses is split from sugar after

Where the production process generaies more than one product, and the value of the one product (by-product) is immaterial
the by-product is often measured at net realisable value, with the main product being measured at cost less the value

from the total manufacturing process (joint cost and refinement process) but after deducting realizable value of by-products
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Inventory Provision

Inventories shall be stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Generally, the cost of inventories shall be stated using
the weighted-average cost method. The write downs of inventory below cost shall be reversed to the extent that the
conditions leading to the write-down no longer apply. It is anticipated that such situations will be rare and that in practice,

benefit will be realized either when finished goods/services are sold or when written-down material are actually used in the
production/service delivery process.

The following stock obsolescence provision calculation methods apply:

1. Damaged inventory having no further usage or no market value is provisioned at 100%,

2. Slow moving, obsolete inventory and items with a shelf life approaching expiration are provisioned by market and sales
entities or factories and supported by adequate rationale. The rationale should reflect the situation or a set of circumstances

(not covered by point 1) that require full or partial provisioning. Reference to their resale value shall be made when
determining the amount of provision.

2.2.12 Biological Asset

The corporation’s biological assets comprise growing crops in the form of sugar cane, and deciduous fruit. Biological assets
are measured at fair value, determined as at 30 June, based on current estimated market prices for the following season, less
the estimated costs of harvesting, transport, packing and point-of-sale costs. The sources of fair value for sugar cane can be
Purchase price of sugarcane from out growers. Hence If there has been any Unharvested /growing corps (cane) , unused
agricultural produce or harvested cane, ESC shall use fair value less cost to sell to record the harvested agricultural produce
as inventory. Gain/loss shall be computed as the difference between fair value and accumulated costs. If fair value exceeds

accumulated costs, Gains on Valuation of Biological Assets arises. On the other hand, loss occurs if accumulated costs
exceed fair value

2.2.13 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

An Corporation shall classify a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset (or disposal group)
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such assets (or disposal groups) and its sale must be highly probable.

Assets that meet the above criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell, and depreciation on such assets to cease.

2.3.14 Impairment of non-financial assets
Disclosures relating to impairment of non-financial assets are summarized in the following notes:

* Accounting policy disclosures Below
* Disclosures for significant assumptions (ifany ) Below
*  Property. plant and equipment Note 11

The Corporation assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Corporation estimates the asset ® s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Unit’s fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or Cash

Generating Unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount,
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.

The Corporation bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Corporation®s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated, These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to
project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Corporation estimates the asset’s
or Cash Generating Unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.
The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.2.15 Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid annual
leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits such as medical care) are recognized in the period in which the
service is rendered and are not discounted. The expected cost of compensated absences is recognized as an expense as the
employees render services that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence
oceurs.

Post employment benefit

Defined contribution plan;

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Corporation pays fixed contributions into
separate entities on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Corporation pays fixed contributions (11 % of the
employee's basic salary) into state managed private employee’s state plan for individual employees. The Corporation has no
further legal or constructive obligations to pay contributions in addition to its fixed contributions, which are recognized as an
expense in the period that related employee services, are received. The Corporation has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid.

Defined Benefit Plan;

The Corporation is obliged by law to pay severance payment for eligible employees who served the Corporation for more
than 5 years when the employment leaves the company by its own will .The amount payable is one month final salary for the
first year of service and one third of the final salary for the remaining year of services. Accordingly the present value of post
employment benefit obligation (severance) and the related current service cost were measured using the projected unit credit
method.

Management estimates the benefit obligation annually with some basic actuarial assumption. This is based on employee
turnover rates, salary growth rate, expected date of termination, identification of eligible employees and relevant discount
rate. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after balance sheet date are discounted to present value. Discount factors are
determined close to each year-end by reference to current incremental borrowing rate.

The liability is computed using Projected Unit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and

the related current service cost and, interest expense. The liability is determined as a present value, of expected future
payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods
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Current service cost which represents the increase in the present value of a defined benefit obligation resulting from
employee service in the current period is included in employee benefits expense. Interest expense which represents the
increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the benefits are one period
closer to settlement is included in Finance costs.

Any gain or loss on settlement which represent the difference between the present value of the defined benefit obligation
being settled, as determined on the date of settlement; and The settlement price and any additional payments made directly
by the entity in connection with the settlement is recognized in the profit or loss. Other actuarial gain or loss is recognized
through other comprehensive income.

Disclosures relating to measurement and recognition of Post employment benefit summarized in note 29 :

Termination benefit;

the Corporation shall recognize the amount of post employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service in the
following ways:

An entity recognizes redundancy benefits as a liability and an expense when the entity is demonstrably committed to either:

1. Terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement date Or Provide
termination benefits because of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.
2. When the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

3. When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Termination benefits do not provide the Corporation with future economic benefits and are recognized as an expense
immediately,

2.2.16 Legal reserve

No less than one-twentieth (5%) of the annual net profit of the Corporation shall be transferred to the legal reserve fund until
such fund amounts to one-fifth (20%) of the capital of the Corporation, It is utilized up on the decision of the supervising
authority. to cover losses incurred by the Corporation and to expand the activities of the Corporation.

2,2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Corporation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events: it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.2.18 Leave accrual
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual vacation as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end

of the reporting period. Employee’s entitlements to annual vacation are also charged to the profit or loss when they accrue to
employees.

31



(3 Jl

ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION

“
| NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
— F X N
""1? 2.2.19 Related parties
L3 A party is related to an entity if, inter alia
(i) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:
'“
. ' a) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow
— subsidiaries);
b) has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; or
"'[’ (ii) the party is an associate of the entity.
—) The Corporation discloses the nature of relationships between the Corporation and its related parties irrespective of whether
there have been transactions between them. An entity shall disclose the name of its shareholder and other companies owned
g by the same share holder which in this case are other companies owned by Government,
— The entity also discloses information about those transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, necessary
for users to understand the potential effect of the relationship on the financial statements. At a minimum, disclosures shall
3 include
___E (a) the amount of the transactions;
(b) the amount of outstanding balances, .
o (i) their terms and conditions, including whether they are secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided in
g settlement;
R (ii) details of any guarantees given or received;
(c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding balances; and
T (d) the expense recognized during the period in respect of bad or doubtful debts due from related parties.
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2.3

2.3.1

New and revised IFRS Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, The Group has not applied the following amendments
to the existing Standards that have been issued and adopted by the ESC but are not yet effective :

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures

Interest Rate Effective from
Benchmark Reform |1.1.2020

Amendments to IAS | Presentation
of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Definition of Effective from
Accounting Policies, Changes in Material 1.1.2020

Accounting Estimates and Errors

Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS
Standards

Effective from
1.1.2020

Management do not expect that the adoption of the amendments to the existing Standards listed above will have
a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group in future periods, except as noted below:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 have been published as a reaction to the potential effects the reform
of Interbank offered rates (IBORs) could have on financial reporting. Amendments are mandatory for all
hedging relationships that are directly affected by the interest rate benchmark reform. The changes modify
specific hedge accounting requirements so that entities would apply those hedge accounting requirements
assuming that the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the hedging
instrument are based will not be altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early application
permitted. The amendments are applied retrospectively.
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2.3.2

2.3.3

Amendments to IAS | and IAS § Definition of Material
2 ; o - ¥ (7 I 1 .. " '4‘ J {‘. 2 0 i a i ) 9

flective i
permitted)

The amendments are intended to make the definition of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not
intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. The concept of ‘obscuring® material
information with immaterial information has been included as part of the new definition,

The amendments are applied prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020, with earlier
application permitted,

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

(Effective in the EU for dccounting periods beginning on or after | January 2020 with earlier application

permitted)

[FRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

2001, the IASB Framework 0f 2010, or the new revised Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions in the
Standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the revised Conceptual Framework.

The amendments, where they actually are updates, are effective for annual periods beginning on or afier 1
January 2020, with early application permitted,
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Corporation’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Corporation's” accounting policies, management has not encountered any situation that calls
for any a significant judgements, which have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year, are described below. The Corporation based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the

financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Corporation. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Corporation measures its property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated depreciation and for the purpose of
determining deprecation, the Corporation estimated the use full life amounts to be Prospectively applied Starting from the
date of translation in to IFRS with changes in accumulated depreciation being recognized against profit or loss in the
comparative and subsequent financial statement,

Valuation of Biological Asset

Growing cane is classified as immature until it is ready for harvest. The fair value measurement of growing cane has been
categorized as a Level 3 Fair Value as it is determined using unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology, and is
based on the best information available at reporting date.

Employee termination benefit

The cost of post employment benefit obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of
the discount rate, future salary increases, and employee turnover rates . Due to the complexity of the valuation, the
underlying assumptions and its long-term nature, a post employment benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the salary increment rate and date of employee termination. In determining the
appropriate salary increment rate, management has taken historical data and estimated rate of salary increment using
growth rate calculation formula.

Further details about post employment benefit obligation are provided in Note 29.
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F

4.

THE YE N

4 Revenue

5.1 The Corporation's other income includes income from sales of scrap material, disposal of asset, and othe

The following are analysis of the Corporation's’ revenue for the year

ETB " ETB

Sales of Imported Sugar 5,020,344,889  4,968,836,655
Sales of Localy Produced White Sugar 4,529,567,299  3,750,421,568
Sales of Ethanol 348,890,910 121,460,649
Sales of Beef cattle 112,092 2,211,144
Sales of Fruit 30,648,570 29,948,569

9,929,563,760  8,872,878,586

Source of Revenue

The Corporation earns revenue mainly from sales of locally produced and imported sugar. 50% income from
sales of locally produced sugar is deposited to Sugar Industry development fund (SIDF) account maintained at
National bank of Ethiopia, which is established by proclamation and the management of the fund is mandated to
the corporation’s board of directors.

The Corporation also earns revenue from sales of ethanol, molasses and fruits.

4.2 Significant payment terms

The entity operates on both advance collection and credit arrangements

In cash sales, The customers shall deposit the amount into the corporation's operational bank account in the
form of account to account transfer using such instruments as CPO prior to the delivery of the goods. In the case
of the credit sale, the products are delivered up on issuance of credit sale invoice and delivery . The company
has only few credit customer namely Ethiopian trading corporation , MEWIT and ETfruit. The credit term of
the corporation is 15 days after the item is delivered.

4.3 Information about major customers

The corporation enters in to contract with customer such as Jinead, Ethiopian Trading and Business
Corporation, EtFruit and unions in different regional states to sale sugar and other by products such as Ethanol

and molasses. It also sales its products to industrial customers such as beverage companies both on cash and
credit basis,

4.4 Sole Producer and Distributer (Monopoly) right.

The sugar industry in Ethiopia is operated only by government under a monopoly through Ethiopian Sugar
Corporation.

5 Other income

ETB ETB
Other income 155,274,748 218,943,074

155,274,748 218,943,074
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

6 Cost of Goods Sold

6.1

A sugarcane plant is to be divided into two parts i.e. stubbles of previous crop (Ratoons) and the standing crop
which is grown on this root which is then harvested for further processing. Hence, Cane Roots (Ratoons) is a
bearer biological asset that is used in the production or supply of agricultural produce (Standing crops); and is
expected to bear canes for more than one period. Standing crops shall be classified as biological assets under
IAS 41 and shall be measured at fair value less costs to sell.

The fair value of standing cane at each reporting date is determined by estimating the growth of the cane, the

yield and expected selling prices less estimated costs to harvest and transport. Changes in fair value are
included in the statement of profit and loss.

Once matured or harvested, the cane is transferred to inventory at fair value less cost to sell, Actual Costs of
cane represents direct materials, direct labour, and applied overhead incurred between the previous harvest and
the current harvest for the production of agricultural produce .Gain/loss is determined as the difference between
fair value and accumulated costs. If fair value exceeds accumulated costs, Gains on Valuation of Biological
Assets arises. On the other hand, loss occurs if accumulated costs exceed fair value

Cost of goods sold in detail

Current production costs

Imported sugar 4,016,194,913  3,972,659.084
Cost of harvested cane at fair value 2,609.427,136  2,130,076,304
Factory processing cost 1,478,864,803  1,195,389,777
Testing Cost - 77,242,774
Total available for sales 8,104,486,852  7,375,367,939
Exice tax 491,727,536 788,451,248
Stocks available for sales 8,596,214,388  8,163,819,187
Ethanol production cost 113,325,495 105,054,091
Fruit plantation cost 13,376,379 10,174,864
Decrease (Increase) in stock of finished products (149,887.486) 50,672,761
Cost of Goods sold d8'573,028,777 8,329,720,902
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

7 General, Admin and selling expense

ETB ETB

Salary, Wages and Benefits 985,910,347  1,134,566,867
Cotton cost - 34,075,544
Current Service Cost 8,193,010 8,505,768
Annual leave expense 3,524,273 (2,889,384)
Fuel and lubricant - expense 49,504,926 178,224,107
Wrtie off - Deferred Expenditure 1,256 6,570,400
Compensation expense 140,211,677 90,624,100
Provision for legal claim (241,958,407) 353,772,417
Insurance expense 23,978,503 49,047,923
Bank charge 7,821,995 7,123,640
Repair and maintenance 89,621,864 94,045,400
Rent expense 30,300,653 19,301,609
Transportation expense 26,621,210 1,478,067
Audit and board Fee 4,005,769 6,938,526
Office supplies 34,704,192 37,312,583
Depreciation expense 399,317,373 447,452,714
Amortization expense 449,203 14,036,570
Exice tax expense 218,389,560 -
Penality and interest 7.882,572 5,703,797
Other Expense 4 126,060,321 143,460,421
Selling expense 28,597,665 19,964,134
Utility expense 35,692,514 886,563
Miscellaneous 24,248,291 24,739,036

Loss of investment -

—2,003,078,765 _ 2,674,940,802
—_—

Current service cost which represents the increase in the present value of a defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period is included in employee benefits expense. .The current service cost
is dependent on the age, service and salary of individual members. The expected service cost would be higher
for older members who are closer to retirement compared to younger members as their benefits would come
into payment sooner. Therefore, as long as the age, service and salary profile of the membership remains stable
so will the service cost (as a percentage of salary) on the same set of assumptions.

8 Finance cost/income

ETB ETB
Interest expense 4,222,804,618  3,826,054,295
Interest on employee termination benefit obligation 6,089,188 5,601,109
Interest on deferred settlement 325,673,110 351,317,430

4,554,566,917 4,182,972,833

8.1 Interest expense is related to the long term loan obtained from commercial bank of Ethiopia bearing interest at

a rate of 9.5%/11.5% per annum.Also included under finance cost is unwinding of the present value of
employee termination benefit obligation, deferred settlement and lease liability. :
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9 TAXATION

(a)

Add;
Less:

Income tax expense

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity if any is recognized in equity and not in the
statement of profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and it establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Current taxation based on the taxable profit for the year at 30% . .
Deferred tax charge S s
Deferred tax credit (121,888,560) (38,032,044)
Current year profit tax expense (121,888,560) (38,032,044)
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10

10.1

10.1.1

10.2
10.2.1

Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is estimated on all temporary differences under the liability method using the tax rate of

Deferred tax liability/PPE
The depreciation rate used for tax purpose and the rate used for IFRS purpose are different which gives rise
to deferred tax asset.

2020 2019

ETB ETB

Property, Plant and Equipment and bearer plant (5,642,304,003) (5,452,086,698)
Employee benefit obligation 8,068,239 7,615,619
Stock Obsolescence and Bad Debt Expense 375,759,648 313,105,802
Deferred expenditure 1,314,769,391 1,044,164,622
Provision for litigation claim 8,620,615 30,225,986
(3,935,086,109) (4,056,974,669)

Change in depreciation method for tax purpose in 2017

The new income tax proclamation No.979/ 2017 has been issued on 2017 and become effective for the
period ended June 30, 2017. The new proclamation revokes the pooling system and permits entities to
separately calculate depreciation on each individual asset by applying the rate specified under regulation
No. 410/2017 article 39 using either declining balance method or straight line methods. Accordingly , We
has opted to use straight line method to determine depreciation for depreciable asset or business intangibles
which are acquired on or after July 1, 2017.

2020 2019

ETB ETB

Tax base of the asset at June 30, 34,682,911,510.44 30,980,689,139.52

Book value of the asset at June 30, 53,490,591,519.59 49,154,311,464.97

Temporary deference (18,807.680,009.15) (18,173,622,325.45)
Niabili ;

?;i:ned tax asset /liability on temporary differences at (5,642,304,002.74) (5.452,086,697.64)

Deferred tax asset

employee benefit obligation

Deferred tax asset arises on the temporary difference between carrying amount of termination benefit
obligation and its tax base. Under Ethiopian tax law, severance payment is deductible when the employee
actually terminates and when the obligation is settled in cash where as IFRS requires recognition of
termination benefit obligation as the employee becomes entitled for the benefit for the service he/she
rendered during the period regardless of payment. This gives rise to deductible temporary difference between
tax base (nil in this case) and carrying amount of employee benefit obligation at the reporting date.

2020 2019

ETB ETB
Tax base of the asset at June 30, - -
Book value of the asset at June 30, (26,894,130.26) (25,385,395.21)
Temporary difference 26,894,130.26 25,385,395.21
Deferred tax asset on temporary differences at 30% 8,068,239.08 7,615,618.56
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E 10.2.2  Stock Obsolescence and Bad Debt Expense

10.2.3

[ 10.2.4

OR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

The company recognizes allowance for doubtful expense in the period in which the provision is made
whereas the local tax law requires such expenses to be recognized only when the company goes through the
court case and customer default is actually decided by the court.Hence,deferred tax asset has been recognized

on the timing difference arising from recognition of allowance for doubtful account, The temporary
difference is eliminated up on acceptance of the default by tax office.

The company also recognizes stock provision expense in the period in which the provision is made whereas
the local tax law requires such expenses to be recognized only when the item is written off and approved by
tax official representatives as a result deductible temporary difference arises. The temporary difference is

eliminated up on acceptance of the provision by tax office as the company has a practice of inviting the tax
official when the item is disposed or written off.

2020 2019
ETB ETB
Tax base of the asset at June 30, - -
Book value of the asset at June 30, (1,252,532,161.28) (1,043,686,006.95)
Temporary difference 1,252,532,161.28 1,043,686,006.95
Deferred tax asset on temporary differences at 30% 375,759,648.38 313,105,802.09
Deferred expenditure
Under local GAAP, the company capitalized the preoperational expenditure incurred in relation
establishment of the factory and depreciated this on straight line basis over ten years as per the tax Law. As
such, this cost does not qualify for recognition as an asset under IFRS, Thus the book value as at Ist July
2016 has been derecognized against Head office account.
2020 2019
ETB ETB
Tax base of the asset at June 30, 4,382,564,637.76 3,480,548,740.13
Book value of the asset at June 30, - -
Temporary difference 4,382,564,637.76 3,480,548,740.13
Deferred tax asset on temporary differences at 30% 1,314,769,391.33 1,044,164,622.04

Deferred tax asset - provision for litigation claim

The company recognized provision for legal claim as at 30 June 2018 arising from legal letigation whereas

the local tax law requires such expenses to be recognized when the court decision is made, this results in
recognition of deffered tax asset,

2020 2019

ETB ETB
Tax base of the asset at June 30, - -
Book value of the asset at June 30, (28,735,383.26) (100,753,287.25)
Temporary difference 28,735,383.26 100,753,287.25
Deferred tax asset on temporary differences at 30% 8,620,614.98 30,225,986.18
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ETHIOPIAN SUGAR CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F THE YE N
12 Property, plant and equipment
Land Office - Building Total
ETB
Deemed Cost:
AS AT 30 June 2018 364,886,565 27,408,546 392,295,111
Additions/transfer -
Disposals/adjustments -
AS AT 30 June 2019 364,886,565 27,408,546 392,295,111
Additions/transfer -
Disposals -
AS AT 30 June 2020 364,886,565 27,408,546 392,295,111
Accumulated depreciation
AS AT 30 June 2018 255,620 13,403,905 13,659,525
Charge for the year 127,810 13,704,273 13,832,083
Disposals/adjustments N
AS AT 30 June 2019 383,430 27,108,178 27,491,608
Charge for the year 127,810 300,368 428,178
Disposals -
AS AT 30 June 2020 511,240 27,408,546 27,919,786
Book Value
AS AT 30 June 2019 364,503,135 300,368 364,803,503
AS AT 30 June 2020 364,375,325 : 364,375,325
12a. Right use of asset - land
The land is transferred to the corporation under lease or right of use asset arrangement with Federal and regional
government in accordance with Rural land administration and use proclamation number 456/2005 , free of charge
for indefinite period, before and afler the Land Lease proclamation comes to effect. There are different
improvements on the land holdings of the Corporation at different sites. The Land use right is valued by external
valuation expert considering the lease price for similar location. As the lease period is for indefinite , right use of
asset land is not depreciated.
The corporation secured a land lease from the Addis Ababa City Administration for a total area of 4,419 square
meters. This lease was intended for the construction of the corporation’s headquarters. However, the lease was
subsequently cancelled by the City Administration, and the land was reclaimed. The advance payment made in
relation to this lease was initially recorded as a prepayment.
In 2018,The Corporation successfully re-secured the land and entered into a new lease agreement with the Addis
Ababa City Administration. The construction of the headquarters has now commenced as per the new lease terms
12b. Right use of asset - office

The corporation has rented office building from KIAMED Medical college plc for a total lump sum payment
amounting ETB 27.408.546 before VAT for two year commencing from July 8, 2017 G.C and expiring on July 8,
2019 E.C. The lease bears no interest. The company use the property for storage purpose only and shall not sub-lease
the property. The total lease payment is made in advance within 30 days from the date of lease agregment.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

13
13.1

Biological Asset
Cane/Fruit Roots

The cane/fruit roots are bearer plants and are therefore presented as non
The carrying value of cane/fruit roots comprises:

Cane Fruit Total
Cost:
Carrying value at 30 June 2018 1,072,811,988 20,292,164 1,093,104,152
Expansion of area under cane 267,116,645 68,093 267,184,738
Fallow during the year (10,338,387) - (10,338,387)
Carrying value at 30 June 2019 1,329,590,246 20,360,257 1,349,950,503
Expansion of area under cane 199,146,593 68,093 199,214,686
Fallow during the year (43,566,052) - (43,566,052)
Carrying value at 30 June 2020 1,485,170,787 20,428,350 1,505,599,137
Accumulate Depreciation: 1
Carrying value at 30 June 2018 345,285,153 1,269,024 346,554,177 -
Additiona) charge for the period cane 198,534,906 619,814 199,154,720 !L
Fallow during the year (10,338,387) : (10,338,387) ;
Carrying value at 30 June 2019 533,481,673 1,888,838 535,370,510
Additional charge for the period cane 229,847,497 624,678 230,472,175
Fallow during the year (43,566,052) - (43,566,052)
Carrying value at 30 June 2020 719,763,118 2,513,515 722,276,633
Immature bearer plant:
Carrying value at 30 June 2018 140,893,957 8,861,966 149,755,923
Transfer to mature cane (240,439,608) (8,930,059) (249,369,667)
Expansion of area under cane 249,391,879 1,894 867 251,286,745
Carrying value at 30 June 2019 149,846,228 1,826,774 151,673,002
Transfer to mature cane (182,638,726) (1,850,028) (184,488,754)
Expansion of area under cane 159,044,987 2,566,227 161,611,215
Carrying value at 30 June 2020 126,252,490 2,542,973 128,795,463
Net Carrying Value of Cane roots 2019 945,954,801 20,298,193 966,252,994
Net Ca rrying Value of Cane roots 2020 891,660,159 20,457,807 912,117,966

=current assets.
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FOR THE YEAR 020
13.2  Growing Cane
The carrying value of cane roots comprises:
Cane Fruit Total

Cane ETB ETB ETB
Carrying value at 30 June 2018 3,214,475,927 123,047,745 3,337,523,672
Cost of harvested cane 1,751,312,505 1,751,312,505
FV at point of harvest (1,523,022,627) (1,523,022,627)
FV gain (loss) transfer to cost of sales !22812891879} (228,289,879)
Change on cost of standing cane 1,124,768,524 - 1,124,768,524
Change in fair value of standing cane 105,706,369 1,733,717 107,440,087
Loss of cane at fair value (125,367,275) (125,367,275)
Reversal of provision for possible destruction (31,707,226) (31,707,226)
FV gain (loss) on standing cane _(1,073,400,392) (1,606,979)  (1,075,007,372)
Carrying value at 30 June 2019 3,108,769,558 121,440,765 3,230,210,323
Cost of harvested cane 2,128,339,173 2,128,339,173
FV at point of harvest (2,102,440,568) _(2,102,440,568)
FV gain (loss) transfer to cost of sales (25,898,605) (25,898,605)
Change on cost of standing cane 420,468,757 3,595,602 424,064,359
Change in fair value of standing cane (605,234,692) 2,844,350 (602,390,341)
Loss of cane at fair value (31,983,646) (31,983,646)
Reversal of provision for possible destruction (216,384,784) (216,384,784)
FV gain (loss) on standing cane 433,134,365 2,844,350 435,978,715
Carrying value at 30 June 2020 3,714,004,250 127,880,718 3,841,884,967

Growing cane is classified as immature until it is ready for harvest. The fair value measurement of growing
cane has been categorized as a Level 3 Fair Value as it is determined using unobservable inputs to the valuation
methodology, and is based on the best information available at reporting date.

Due to the EI Nifio effect in Tendahoo Sugar project, it has been determined that the biological asset has
incurred damage. As a result, management has concluded that the plantation no longer provides future
economic benefits due to the adverse weather conditions. Therefore, a provision has been recorded for the
entire accumulated costs associated with the plantation, amounting to ETB 1.613 billion .

The fair value of growing crops is determined based on current market prices less estimated selling costs,
However, Due to the conflict in the Tigray, it was not possible to conduct an assessment to determine if the
crop at Welkait sugar project had been damaged. Consequently, management has also concluded that the
plantation has ceased to provide further benefit due to the lack of care during the war period. Therefore, a

provision has been recognized for the full accumulated costs related to the plantation, totalling ETB 352
million."

The loss on cane at fair value reflects the value of cane harvested for the sugar projects that was not utilized in
the production of white sugar. This loss occurred because the processing plant w -yel operational and
ready for production at the time the cane was harvested. N
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15

15.1a

Cash and cash equivalents

ETB ETB

1,691,480,020 3,354,150,268
4,841,440 2,232,130

1,696,321,460 3,356,382,398

Cash at bank
Cash on hand

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly
liquid investments maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash at banks earns interest at
floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Financial assets : Trade and other receivable
ETB ETB
Trade receivables 1,218,265,102 588,451,687
Sundry debtors 633,439,079 683,196,631
Staff receivable 86,863,038 81,721.566
Claim receivable 29,448,803 28,259,993
Stock variance 2,250,608 2,250,608
Former associated enterprise 12,932,323 12,932,323
1,983,198,953 1,396.812,808
Allowance for doubtful accounts - Trade and other receivable (229,030,953) (190,308,466)
1.754.168,000 1.206,504,342

Total financial assets

Total current

Total non-current

1,754,168,000

1,206,504.342

1,754,168,000

1,206,504,342

Trade receivables
Since all sales of white sugar to customer is made by head office , trade receivable are mainly maintained in the
account of head office.

Comprises of amounts due from major customer such as MEWIT, Et-fruit and Ethiopian Trading Enterprise for
sales of sugars and other by-products on account. Recognition of trade receivable coincides with the recognition of
the corresponding sales amount. The sale of sugar including order receiving, invoice issuance as well as cash
collection is maintained, followed up and controlled at head office.
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e
— 15.1b Allowance for credit losses
The Corporation applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognizing lifetime expected credit losses for trade
.| receivable arising from Credit sales as these items do not have a significant financing component. In measuring the
s expected credit losses, the receivables have been assessed on a collective basis as they possess shared credit risk
characteristics.

The average credit period for collection of trade receivable is 15 Days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.
For receivable as than trade such as such as staff debtors , The Corporation has recognized an allowance for
doubtful debts through individually assessing all outstanding receivables. Trade receivables disclosed below
- include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the
Corporation has recognized an allowance for doubtful debts. It represents only of trade debtors arising from sales
of sugar on credit.

e The movements in impairment allowance for receivable is analyzed below:

'l lndii:s:i::z Collectively impaired Total
ETB ETB ETB

= | At 30 June 2018 96@9812]6 - 9613981216
| Impairment loss recognized on receivables 93,910,250 93,910,250
- Utilized/written off - -
Unused amounts reversed/recovered - -

[' At 30 June 2019 190,308,466 - 190,308,466
: Impairment loss recognized on receivables 38.722,487 38,722,487
1 Utilized/written off - -
— Unused amounts reversed/recovered = =
At 30 June 2020 229‘0301953 - 229,030,953

16 Advance and prepayment
= A e P
ETB ETB

= Advance payment 14,872,745,556 15,010,231,282

Prepayments 4,184,819 2,968,652

- Outgrowers 600,143,334 649,407,285
Allowance for doubtful accounts - Advance and Prepayment (7.971,912,334) (7.382,602,470)

-l 7,505,161,375 8.280,004,749
= 16.1 This represent advance payment made to the Corporation's major suppliers and contractor for purchase of capital

good items and services such as construction to be delivered in the future. The prepayment is released to
= Construction in progress (CIP) on a proportionate basis at a 30% of the work executed to date when the billing is
issued. Certain prepayments were found to be impaired and an allowance for credit losses has been recorded
accordingly within other expenses. The impaired prepayments are advance payments mostly made to suppliers and
4 service providers including professional consultancies in the business-to-business market that are experiencing
operational difficulties and failed to deliver the promised goods and services with in the agreed period of time.

, 16.2 In addition to in-house production. sugar Factories purchases sugarcane from Outgrowers through farms
association. Costs of farming up to weighbridge is financed from by the corporation which will be , but
— reimbursable as a deduction from purchase price of the cane. All expenditure incurred on the Outgrowers land
identified by field number are recorded in Advance to Outgrowers which is a receivable. The out grower are also
given a fixed sum of money in order to fulfil their cash need until the first round cane is harvested and the
payment is reported as a subsistence fee receivable. The subsistence fee is repaid proportionately over the five
rounds of harvesting. i.e. the deduction from subsistence fee in an equal instalment over harvesting. o
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17 Tax receivable

l

-

g

|

i
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1019

ETB

VAT receivable 3,930,335,878 3.653,564,826
WHT receivable 445,883,063 365,679,980
Income tax receivable 27,583,664 17,309,339
Allowance for doubtful accounts - Tax receivable (461,012,659) (388,921,429)
3,942,789,946 3,647,632,716

18 Inventories

ETB

Protective Device & Safty Material 206,903 179,040
Factory & Construction Material 378,039,459 342,013,233
Chemical, fertilizer & Agri tools 334,443,503 329,374,064
Farm product 407,303 407,263
General store items 356,286,743 411,571,915
Construction materials 18,043,959 7,777,782
Fuel and lubricant 141,734,074 171,808,546
White sugar 1,397,143,394 1,496,691,444
Ethanol production 39,704,388 27.864.756
Fixed asset & Spare parts 2,015,648,678 1,793,233,342
Irrigation materials 827,698,619 768,359,729
Others 39,855,306 104,078,309
Materials & supplies 16,604,226 25,341,558
5.565.816,557 5.478,700,982
Goods In transit 777,553,785 1,783,503,609
Pro. For Stock Obsolescence (553,062,883) (500,641,185)
Total inventories at the lower of cost and NRV 5,790,307,459 6,761,563,406
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20

21

22

23

24

26

Paid up capital

The entity is wholly owned by the government of the Federal democratic republic of Ethiopia. The Corporation is established at summation
of the carrying amount of the net asset of the each of the existing factories amounting ETB 6,042,512.614 at the date of incorporation i.e. 10
December 2010.This represent authorized and paid up capital of each factory and head office. In the subsequent period the paid-up capital
increase by ETB 8.040,511,876 through in kind contribution by government.

Accumulated loss

The cumulative profit or loss of the Corporation that are available for reinvestment in the Corporation's core business or to pay down its
debt.

Sugar Industry Development Fund

The Sugar Industry Development fund is established by Proclamation NO. 415/2004. Financial sources of the fund is sale proceeds of sugar
in the domestic market by the corporation in excess of ETB 1,026 per quintal weighting 100kgs (One Thousand Twenty Six Birr ) and is
expected to be further increase with the coming in to effect of a directive which is currently on a draft stage.

Transfer of sale proceed to the fund is recorded as a reserve for SIDF of each branch and refund of the amount back to the corporation for
project works is recognized directly in equity component SIDF . Hence SIDF is a components of equity that represent funds transfer from
fund to the corporation to finance the ongoing sugar development projects.

Capital contribution

This is regular contribution by the government to the factories and head office. The contribution is made both in cash and kind. It is treated
as one of the components of equity.

Asset revaluation reserve
The balance is resulted from revaluation of property, plant and equipment. and freehold land at first time adoption of IFRS .

Reserve for SIDF

This represents transfer of portion of the sales proceed of each factory to SIDF fund Since 2017 and directly charged to an equity
component called Reserve for SIDF. The contribution to the fund made before 2017 was charged to profit or loss and hence reported as
part of accumulated loss,

Other reserve

All other categories of equity that is not categorized under the above items are reported as part of other reserve. This includes transaction
like actuarial gain or loss arising from remeasurement of employee benefit.

Contribution for capital expenditure

Represent SIDF Contribution to head office and service fee from factories less head office operating cost
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27

27.1

27.2

27.3

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

2020 2019 j.-j e
ETB ETB
Trade and other payable (27.1) 17,251,482,720 15,472,216,337
Retention payable 2,389,420,603 2.190,924,265
Interest Payable 3,084.588.484 2,726,675,328
Sugar development fund 200,991,991 167,514,534

Long term loan (27.4)

Total financial liabilities

Total current
Total non-current

168.168,403,808

140,964,931,957

191,094,887,605

161,522.262.421

22,926,483,797

20,557,330,464

168,168,403,808

140,964,931,957

Trade and other payables

ETB ETB

Trade payable 6,072,967.586 6.067,243.308

Sundry payable 492,216,348 408.821.538
Staff payable 49,904,097 44,716,523
Payable To AL-Habesha 289,036,482 285,015,782
HAPCO HIV Fund 4,553.467 4,553,467
Payable to METEC 25,635,798 28.806.218
Former Associated enterprise-payable 6.341.419 6.341.419
Suppliers & contractors 10,310.827.523 8.626.718.083

17,251,482,720 15,472.216,337

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms and Interest payable is calculated on long term loans and
bonds which is normally settled quarterly throughout the financial year. The carrying values of trade and other short-term payables are
considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. Sundry payables are those unpaid invoices that do not directly relate to the
normal operations of the business, i.e. unusual transactions that do not relate to the normal course of business.

Sugar Industry Development Fund Payable

Is a portion of income from sale of locally produced sugar to be deposited in a special account maintained at National bank of Ethiopia.
Hence. the SIDF payable ledger in the operating account represents the income from sale of sugar yet not transferred to SIDF fund in the
NBE account.

Retention Payable
Represent a Payment made for a construction works that is withheld pending the completion of some specified condition. When a
contractor is bills the Corporation for works executed, The Corporation withheld five percentage (5 %) of the payment due as a retention
money until the constructed plant is successfully competed and become operational.
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27.4 Long term loans

27.5

28
28.1

This represents the loans obtained from local and international banks. While the welkayit kuraz kesem ,Welkayit factory project are
financed by the loan obtained from China development bank and ICBC , other projects such as BELES 1 , KURAZ 1, ARJO and
KESEM including farm land development and infrastructure is financed by loan obtained from Commercial bank of Ethiopia.

Majority of the loans are directly secured by the corporation and hence are maintained in the accounts of head office.

Balance at beginning of the period

Add; Disbursement 21,392.752,770 18.204,893,390
Interest 1,747,577,869 2.335,501,448

: Forex loss 12,522.771.604 4,347,495.402
Less: Settlement (8.459,630,392) (6,453.729,327)
Balance at end of the period 168,168,403,808 140,964,931,957

The Corporation finances its projects through loans obtained from different finance provider/ Financier such as world bank. Arab banks,
African development bank and others. A loan agreement is entered in to with these financiers at a given lump sum limit to be disbursed 1o
each project at different times based on the utilization request to pay for the works completed and for advance payment to contractors. The
loan is denominated in foreign currency and bears an interest which is clearly specified in the agreement. It is recognized up on
disbursement from the bank at the fair value of the consideration received translated in to Birr at the exchange rate ruling at date on which
the loan is disbursed. The loan is repayable in semi-annual instalment commencing at the end of from 5 up to 15 Yyears of grace period.

The borrowing are payable as follows

: At 2020 AL'2019
not later than one year 6.558,796.911 8.459.630,392
later than one year and not later than five years 161.609.606.897 132.505,301.565

later than five years

168,168,403,808 140,964,931,957

Durign the 2022 fiscal vear the factory obtained an interest free loan from Ministry of finance. The loan principal is ETB 129,501,708 and
repayable in 11 semi annual instalments starting from July 2022, The loan will mature in July 202.This loan was issued at below market
interest rate. The has recognized a deferred income from these consessional loan amounting Birr 35,630,755,

Financial Risk Management

Introduction

The Corporation's principal financial liabilities. comprise loans and borrowings. trade and other payables . The main purpose of these
financial liabilities is to finance the Corporation's operations . The Corporation's principal financial assets include trade and other
receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that arrive directly from its operations. The Corporation’s activities expose it to a variety of

on the identification and management of risks and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. Investment
policies are in place, which help manage liquidity, and seek to maximize return within an acceptable level of interest rate risk.

Tha indenandent ricl cantral nrneecs daee nat inehide hicinece ricke crich ae rhanase in the envirnnment technalaoy and indietre The
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28.1.1 Risk management structure

28.1.2

28.1.3

28.2

The Management has the ultimate responsibility for establishing and ensuring the effective functioning of the Risk and Compliance
Management activities of the Corporation.

The Chief Finance Officer (CFO) has the overall responsibility for the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles,
frameworks, policies and risk appetite. It is also responsible for performing compliance monitoring and testing, preparing periodic risk and
compliance exposure reports to management.

The Management is responsible for translating and implementing the Corporation’s risk management strategy, priorities and policies as
approved by the Managing Director,,

The Corporation’s policy is that risk management processes throughout the Corporation are assessed periodically by the management. This

will help to adequately capture risk exposure, aggregate exposure of risk types and incorporate short run as well as long run impact on the
Corporation

Risk measurement and reporting systems

The Corporation’s risks are measured using methods that reflect both the expected loss likely to arise in normal circumstances and
unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical model. The models make use of probabilities derived
from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic environment.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Corporation. These limits reflect the business
strategy and market environment of the Corporation as well as the level of risk that the Corporation is willing to accept. with additional
emphasis on selected regions. In addition. the Corporation measures and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the
aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities.

Risk mitigation

The Corporation uses various risk mitigating techniques to reduce its risk to the level acceptable. Risk controls and mitigate, identified and
approved for the Corporation, are documented for existing and new processes and systems.

The adequacy of these mitigate is tested on a periodic basis through administration of control self-assessment questionnaires, using an
operational risk management tool which requires risk owners to confirm the effectiveness of established controls. These are subsequently
reviewed as part of the review process.

Financial risk

Financial instruments by category

The Corporation's financial assets are classified into the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) or amortized
cost and the financial liabilities are classified into other liabilities at amortized cost.

Financial instruments are classified in the statement of financial position in accordance with their legal form and substance.
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28.3

28.3.1

The Corporation's classification of its financial assets is summarized in the table below:

Notes FVTPL  Amortized Cost Total

30 June 2020 ETB ETB ETB
Cash at Bank 14 1.696,321,460 1,696,321,460
Investment securities E
— At fair value through PL -
— At amortized cost 16 3,992.000 3,992,000
Trade receivables 15 1,218.265,102 1,218,265,102
Inter-company receivable 15 - -
Other receivables 15 535,902,898 535,902,898
Total financial assets 1,696,321,460 1,758,160,000 3,454,481,460
FVYTPL  Amortized Cost Total

30 June 2019 ETB ETB ETB
Cash at Bank 14 3,356.382,398 3.356,382.398
Investment securities -
— At fair value through PL -
— At amortized cost 16 3,992,000 3,992,000
Trade receivables 1 588,451,687 588.451.687
Other receivables 15 618.052,655 618,052,655
Total financial assets 3,356,382,398 1,210,496,342 4,566,878,740

Credit risk

The Corporation has exposure to credit risk. which is the risk th
where the Corporation is exposed to credit risk is trade receivab

Management of credit risk

The Corporation manages the levels of credit risk it

at a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas
les.

accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or companies of

counterparty and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are subject to regular review, Limits on the level of credit risk by
category and territory are approved executive management,

The table below show the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Corporation's financial assets. The maximum exposure is show gross
before the effect of mitigation:

Notes
Cash at Bank 14
Investment securities 1.696.321.460
— At fair value through PL g g
— At amortized cost 16 ” :
Trade receivables 15 3,992,000 3,992,000
Other receivables 15

- 588.451,687
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28.3.2 Credit quality analysis
(@) Credit quality of cash and cash equivalents

The credit quality of cash and bank balances and short-term investments that were neither past due nor impaired are held in Ethiopian
banks have been classified as non-rated as there are no credit rating agencies in Ethiopia. The Corporation has cash or cash equivalent that
are held in foreign currency.

(b)  The Corporation applies the IFRS 9 simplified model of recognizing lifetime expected credit losses for all trade receivables as these items
do not have a significant financing component. In measuring the expected credit losses, the trade receivables have been assessed on a
collective basis as they possess shared credit risk characteristics. They have been grouped based on the days past due and also according to
the geographical location and nature of customers,

not been considered significant within the reporting period.

Trade receivables are written off (.e. derecognized) when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Failure to make payments within
180 days from the invojce date and failure to engage with the Corporation on alternative payment arrangement amongst other is considered
indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery,

The amount that bes represents the company’s maximum CXposure to credit risk as at year-end is made up as follows:

30 June 2020 Fully perfﬂrming Past due Impaired Total
Trade and other receivables 1,754,168.,000 - (229,030,953) 1,525,137,047
Cash and bank balances : 1,696,321.460 - - 1.696.321.460
3,450,489 460 - (229.030,953) 3.221,458.507

30 June 2019 Fully performing Past due Impaired Total
Trade and other receivables 1,206.504.342 - (190.308,466) 1.016,195.876
Cash and bank balances 3,356.382,398 - - 3.356,382,398
4,562.886,740 = (190.308.466) 4.372.578,274

284 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation cannot meet its maturing obligations when they become due, at reasonable cost and in a
timely manner. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Corporation might be unable to meet its payment obligations when
they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances, Such scenarios could
oceur when funding needed for illiquid asset positions is not available to the Corporation on acceptable terms,

Liquidity risk Mmanagement in the Corporation is solely determined by the Chief Finance Officer(CFO). CFO bears the overall responsibility

for liquidity risk. The main objective of the Corporation's liquidity risk framework s 1o maintain sufficient liquidity in order to ensure that
the Corporation will settle maturing obligations,

28.4.1 Management of liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the finance department. The finance department monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs.

The Corporation evaluates its ability to meet its obligations on an ongoing basis. Based on these evaluations, the Corporation devises
strategies 1o manage its liguidity risk.

Prudent liquidity risk Mmanagement implies that sufficient cash is maintained and that sufficient funding is available to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and siressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk damage 1o the Corporation’s
reputation,
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28.4.2 Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Corporation’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The cash flows presented are the undiscounted amounts to be settled in

future.

0-180 days 181 - 365 days Over 1 year Total
Notes ETB ETB ETB ETB

30 June 2020
Trade payable 28.1 6,072,967,586 - - 6.072,967,586
Retention payable 283 - - - -
Sugar industry development 282 - - 200,991,991 200,991,991
Borrowings 28.4 - - 168,168.403.808  168.168.403,808
Other liabilities 28.1 11,178,515,133 - B 11,178,515,133
Inter company payable 274 23,175,153,894 - - 23,175,153.894
Total financial liabilities 40,426,636,614 - 168,369,395,799  208,796,032,413

30 June 2019
Trade payable 28.1 6.067.243.308 - 6.067,243.308
Retention payable 28.3 - 2.190,924.265 2,190,924.265
SIDF Payable 28.2 B 167.514.534 167.514,534
Borrowings 284 - 140.964.931,957 140.964.931,957
Other liabilities 28.1 7.214.048.764 - 7.214.048,764
Inter company payable 274 16,519,282,729 - 16,519,282,729
Total financial liabilities 29,800,574,801 143,323,370,756 173,123,945,557

Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
risk factors such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices. credit spreads and their volatilities. Market risk can arise in
conjunction with trading and non-trading activities of a financial institutions. The Corporation does not ordinarily engage in trading

Management of market risk

The main objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return on risk. Market risk is monitored by the Sales and Marketing department on regular basis, to identify any adverse
movement in the underlying variables.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will be affected by changes in market interest rates. Borrowings obtained
at variable rates give rise to interest rate risk.

The Corporation’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Corporation’s obligations and financial
assets with floating interest rates. The Corporation is also exposed on fixed rate financial assets and financial liabilities. The Corporation’s
investment portfolio is comprised of Ethiopian Government bonds and equity investments.

The Corporation has loans and borrowings and therefore is exposed to interest rate risk as far as loans and borrowings are concerned. Loans
and receivable assets are carried at cost, hence any movement in market interest rate has no effgglgn the value of such assets.
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The table below sets out information on the exposures to fixed and variable interest instruments

30 June 2020

Assets

Cash and bank balances
Trade receivables

Inter company receivable
Other receivables

Total

Liabilities
Trade payables
Borrowings
Other liabilities

Total

30 June 2019

Assets

Cash and bank balances
Trade receivables

Inter company receivable
Other receivables

Total

Liabilities

Trade payables

Borrowings
Other liabilities

Total

Notes

15

15
15

28.1
284
28.1

Notes

14
15
15

15

28.1
284
28.1

¥loating Non-interest
Fixed interest : Total

haawving beﬂrlﬂg
ETB ETB ETB ETB
1,696,321,460 - - 1,696,321,460
- - 1,218,265,102 1,218,265,102
- - 535,902,898 535,902,898
1,696,321,460 - 1,754,168,000 3,450,489,460
- - 6.072,967.586 6,072,967,586
168.168.403.808 - 168,168,403.808
- - 34.554,661,019 34.554,661.019
168,168,403,808 - 40,627,628.605 208,796,032,413
Fixed Flloatmg E\tm-mter_est Total

interest bearing
ETB ETB ETB ETB
3.356.382.398 - - 3.356,382.398
- - 588.451.687 588.451.687
- - 618.052.655 618.052.655
3,356,382,398 - 1,206,504,342 4,562,886,740
- - 6,067,243.308 6.067,243,308

140.964.931.957

26,091,770,292

140,964.931,957
26,091,770,292

140,964,931,957

32,159,013.600

173,123,945,557
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28.6

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to the changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Corporation primarily transacts in Ethiopian Birr and its assets and liabilities are denominated in the same currency.
The Corporation is therefore not exposed to currency risk.

Capital management

The Corporation maintains an efficient capital structure of equity shareholders’ funds, consistent with the Corporation’s risk profile and the
regulatory and market requirements of its business.

The Corporation’s objectives in managing its capital are:

+ to match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;

= to maintain financial strength to support new business growth;

« to satisfy the requirements of its policyholders, regulators and rating agencies;

* o retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to.a range of capital markets;

= to allocate capital efficiently to support growth;

« to safeguard the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders; and

+ to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk.

20208 12019
ETB ETB

Capital 14,083.024.490 14.083.024,490
Legal reserve - -
Capital contribution 393.286.376 418,273.766
Fund balance 101,054,623 101,054.623
Budget contribution E -
Grant/donation 17.879,927,787 18.666,049,921
Project expansion fund - -
Reserve for SIDF (9.218,250,273) (7,290,739.206)
Asset revaluation reserve 11,977.353.299 11,977,353,299
Head office account (64,002,820.014)  (55,722,648.339)
Other reserve 11,975.728 3,796,029
Equity (28.786,423.712)  (17,767.631.446)
Total liability 197.417.265.241 168.559.744.986
Less: current liability 31.828.196.387 31,953,641.394
Net debt 165.589.068.854 136,606,103.593

121% 115%

Gearing

An important aspect of the Corporation’s overall capital management process is the setting of target risk-adjusted rate of return which is

aligned to performance objectives and ensures that the Corporation is focused on the creation of value for shareholders.
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28.7

28.7.1

28.7.2

28.7.3

28.7.4

28.8

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

IFRS 13 requires an entity to classify measured or disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that reflects the significance of observable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, which comprises of three levels as described below, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

Valuation models

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable input reflect market data obtained from independent sources: unobservable inputs reflect the Corporation's
market assumptions,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

® Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
® Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) .This category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for

similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active. or other valuation
technique in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

In conclusion. this cateenry is for valuation technianes for which the lowest level innut that is sienificant to the fair value measnrement is
Fair value methods and assumptions

Trade receivables are carried at cost net of provision for impairment. The estimated fair value represents the discounted amount of estimated
future cash flows expected to be received. Expected cash flows are discounted at current market rates to determine fair value,

Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs — Level 3

The Corporation has no financial asset measured at fair value on subsequent recognition.

Transfers between the fair value hierarchy categories

During the three reporting periods covered by these annual financial statements, there were no movements between levels as a result of
significant inputs to the fair valuation process becoming observable or unobservable.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

There are no offsetting arrangements. Financial assets and liabilities are settled and disclosed on a gross basis.
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Defined benefit obligation ( Severance Benefit )

(i) Severance benefit plan

Accounted as part of financial liability, The Corporation is obliged by law to pay severance payment for eligible employees who served the
Corporation for more than 5 years when the employment is terminated. The Corporation employees are entitled to severance benefit. The
severance benefit entitlement is provided under the labor proclamation No.3777/2003, as amended by the Labor (Amendment)
Proclamation No. 494/2006 .In the first year, the pay is third times the average daily wage of the last week of service, severance pay is
calculated in proportion to the period of service. For every additional year of service, payment is increased by a third of a benefit provided
that the total amount does not exceed twelve months wage of the employee. This benefit is also entitled to employees in the event of death in
service,, voluntary resignation and disability after five years of service. Accordingly the present value of post employment benefit obligation
[(severance) and the related current service cost were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Valuation Approach

The provision was based on an independent actuarial valuation performed by Ruparelia Consultants Limited (RCL) using the projected unit
credit method. The severance benefit is an unfunded defined benefit scheme. The key financial assumptions are the discount rate , the rate
of salary increases and age of retirement. The Corporation does not maintain any assets for the schemes but ensures that it has sufficient
funds for the obligations as they crystallize. The details of the valuation approached is is explained

Severance Benefit;

The actuarial liability values have been calculated usin g the Projected Unit Credit Method. We have first estimated the total liability based
on total service (i.e. service between date of employment and expected date of exit) according to the Scheme design, We have projected
benefit payments into the future taking into account assumed future pay increases. The expected future cash flows are then discounted to the
valuation date. The total liability has then been pro-rated by a proportion of past service relative to expected total service in order to estimate
the actuarial liability at the valuation date. The actuarial liability estimated is an outcome of a valuation exercise,

The current service costs for the vear have been calculated using the Projected Unit Method with a one-year control period, The current
service costs are outcomes of a planning exercise (with the latter service cost bein g required for the next disclosure. The current service cost
is dependent on the age, service and salary of individual members, The expected service cost would be higher for older members who are
closer to retirement compared to younger members as their benefits would come into payment sooner. Therefore. as long as the age. service
and salary profile of the membership remains stable so will the service cost (as a percentage of salary) on the same set of assumptions. For
an ageing membership the current service cost would be expected to increase over time.

No allowance has been made for new entrants after the valuation date or for any other discretionary benefits or practice within the Scheme,
A current service cost has not been estimated for members who are above their normal retirement age as we have assumed that these
members will retire immediately at the valuation date.

Defined benefits liabilities:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation

At the Beginning of the year 43.827.359 41.259.040
Current service cost 7,947,752 8,236,414
Interest cost 6.089.188 5,601,109
Actuarial (gains)/losses on: (8.179.699) (8.721,746)
Demographic assumptions = S
Economic assumptions - 5
Experience = -
Benefits paid (5.308.753) (2.547.458)

44,375,848 43,827,359

At the end of the year
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(i)

(i)

fiv)

v

(i}

The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligations

Discount rate (p.a)

Long term salary increases (p.a)
Retirement age assumption
Discount rate

In Ethiopia, there is neither a deep market in corporate nor government bonds. Furthermore,
inefficient and does not appear to be market determined. IAS 19 does not provide guidance fo

limited government bonds or instruments.

ETB

12.75%
10.75%

12.75%
10.75%
55

the market for treasury bills in Ethiopia is
r setting the discount rate in a country with

The Corporation therefore opted to use a discount rate of 12.75% based on the prevailing commercial banks lending rate as advised by the

Association of Ethiopian Insurers,
Long term salary increases

A salary increase assumption of 10.75% p.a. has been assumed . Salary increases have been assumed to occur at the end of each accounting
year (i.e. at 30 June every year)..The salary increase has been determined by the management as mutually compatible rate taking into

account the likely future economic scenarios of the country,

Mortality rate

Mortality is normally expressed as the probability of death within the next year for an individual of a specific age. Different mortality rates

are thus set for each age group (higher rates for older people) and this set of rates is referred to as a mortality table.

Withdrawals from service

The withdrawal rate selected was based on experience in other similar arrangements,

H-health / Disability

60

Age_ Males Females
20 0.111% 0.111%
25 0.112% 0.111%
30 0.116% 0.113%
35 0.132% 0.120%
40 0.188% 0.147%
45 0.330% 0.231%
50 0.599% 0.420%
55 1.035% 0.750%
60 1.720% 1.272%

Age_ Males Females
20 15.0% 15.0%
25 12.0% 12.0%
30 6.0% 6.0%
35 2.5% 2.5%
40 1.8% 1.8%
45 1.0% 1.0%
50 0.0% 0.0%
55 0.0% 0.0%
60 0.0% 0.0%

Age Males Females
20 0.04% 0.04%
25 0.04% 0.04%
30 0.04% 0.04%
35 0.04% 0.04%
40 0.06% (1L05%
45 0.11% 0.08%
50 0.20% 0.14%
55 0.35% 0.25%
60 0.57% 0.42%
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(vii) - Duration of the plan

29¢

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years, The average duration of
the retirement benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is 5.4 years,

Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption

The sensitivity of the overall defined benefit liability to changes in the weighted principal assumption is:

Figures in Birr Sensitivity scenarios

' (1) (2) (3)

Base I1+1 I-1
12.75% 13.75% 11.75% 12.75% 12.75%

Salary increases (e) and inflation (cpi) 10.75% 10.75% 10.75% 11.75% 9.75%,
Results

30-Jun-19 44.901.850 42,994,588 48422074 48,252,569 : 43,107,474 !
30-Jun-20 47,099,019 43,663,196 | 48912,023 48,759,180 43,765,514

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is
unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caleulating the sensitivity of the defined benefit
obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when caleulating the pension liability recognized within
the statement of financial position,

A 1% p.a reduction in the discount rate will increase the actuarial liability estimated 30 June 2019 to 48 422,074 Birr (with all other
assumptions remaining the same), If the discount rate is increases by 1% p.a.. then the actuarial liability estimated at 30 June 2019 would
fall to 42,994,588 Birr.

Alternatively. a 1% increase in the salary increase assumption will increase the actuarial liability estimated June 30 2019 to 48.252.569 Birr
(with all other assumptions remaining the same). If the salary increase assumption is reduced by 1% p.a., then the actuarial liability
estimated 30 June 2019 would fall 10 43. 107.474 Birr.

The other figures in the table above can be interpreted in a similar way,

Based on the membership data, assumptions and methodology used. the duration of the liability as at 30 June 2019 is around 6.7 years as at
30 June 2020,

This is not an exhaustive list of the assumptions used in the valuation and neither should be sensitive be taken as extreme events (in reality
future investment returns may be significantly different than that assumed at this valuation). For example, changes to the longevity
assumptions will also have an effect on the valuation results. However, we have shown the impact of what we believe are the key factors.
Key risks

T'he risks associated with severance benefit entitlements are as follows;

The benefits are linked to salary and consequently has an associated risk of an increase in salary.

2 The benefits are defined as per the labor proclamation , and hence possible amendment to the proclamation could change this benefit and

materially change the cost of the Corporation

3 The severance benefit is unfunded with no Separale assets, an investment risk would therefore not arise.

4 Severance benefit is payable when an employees contract of employment is terminated by the initiation of the employer against the

provision of law. The actual cost to the Corporation of the benefits is therefore subject to the demographic movement of the employees.
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30 Other tax and obligation

20208
ETB ETB
Employment Income tax 33,709.653 41,176,999
Other taxes 254.153 302,558
Excise tax payable 562,083,737 684,578.324
Withholding tax payable 21,692,157 29,100,202
Vat Payable 457,268.381 438,376,098
Pension contribution payable 20,864,262 21,669,683
1,095,872,342 1.215.203,864

E
represent the tax deducted from em ployees but not seitled to the authority as the settlement is made usually in the subsequent period. The
Pension payable is defined contribution plan where Employees are included in a statutory pension scheme to which the Corporation and

these employees contribute 11% and 7% of the individual monthly salaries, respectively.

31 Accruals and unearned revenue

i

ETB ETB
Contract liability 207,604,194 128,902,226
Accrual 453,790,821 729.351.602
Provision 221.584.888 499,159,410
882.979.903 1,357,413,238

J1.1 Included in accrual is cumulative annual leave . Corporation , unclaimed salary and others accrued at the reporting date. Each employee is
entitled to an annual leave of 14 days for the first year of employment and keeps on increasing one day per additional vear of service until

it reaches the maximum amount allowed per year . However . the leave can only be carried forward for one more vear.
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iv.

34

Events after reporting period

Except as disclosed below, there were no significunt events that occurred between 30 June 18 and the date of issue of this financial
statement.
Covid 19 assessment

The corporation has assessed the impact of Covid 19 on the Business . based on the assessment . no significant impact or uncertainties is
expected by management.

Government announcement to privatize sugar factories

Ethiopian Investment Holdings. the main marketing authority for the government, invited local and foreign investors to acquire up to 100
percent ownership in the eight sugar firms. These include Omo Kuraz 1, Omo Kuraz 2. Omo Kuraz 3, Omo Kuraz 5, Arjo Dedessa.
Kessem. Tana Beles and Tendaho

The Ethiopian Sugar Industry Group (ESIG) the newly established body replacing the former sugar corporation has taken over the
ownership of sugar development projects such as Omo 1, Omo 2, Omo 3, Omo 5 , Tendaho, Arjo and Welkait. Under this new structure
.the rest of the projects and each existing factories such as Beles, Kesem, Fincha, Wonji and Methara sugar factories will have their own
legal personalities directly controlled by Ethiopian investment Holding.

Out break of civil war in norther region of Ethiopia

Since November 2020, a military conflict between the FDRE Government and TPLF has affected the northern region of the country. The
Project has been unable to assess the potential damage incurred by the Welkait Sugar Development Project located in the region due to the
project’s closure since the conflict began. Despite management's inability to access the project for assessment, physical assets of the project
valued at a total of 17.668.281.669.79 BIRR, including the factory machinery, buildings, irrigation systems, other infrastructure, and
plantation, were exposed to potential damage during the war.

Military Conflict in Oromia region of Ethiopia

Since 2020, a military conflict has arisen between the Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia (FDRE) Government and local rebel forces
in the Oromia region. The Arjo and Fincha Sugar Factory, situated in the area, have been significantly impacted by the conflict.
Management has conducted an assessment revealing a total loss of around Birr 281 and 245 million incurred by the factories respectively
due to vandalism perpetrated by the rebels since the onset of the conflict.

Going concern assumption

assessment made on whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Corporation's ability 1o continue as a going concern. Management's conclusions are based on the assessment made up to the forcible future.
Based on the assessment, management has identified going concern issue on Welkait, Tendahoo and Omo 5

Welkait: Management of the Project has affirmed its commitment to continue operations at the Welkait project and has therefore
determined that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. However. significant financial investment is deemed necessary for
completing the factory and related infrastructure, including the plantation. Pursuant to a board decision dated Sene 14, 2015 E.C.,

Concurrently, management intends to explore alternative strategies, including the potential privatization of the project through transfer to
private national or multinational investors. This strategic initiative aims to secure additional funding and enhance the project’s sustainability
beyond the current financial constraints,

Tendaho:The Subsequent event conditions of the Civil War in the Northern Region, the bad whether condition (EI Nifio effect), the
subsequent transfer of movable properties to other Factories and Projects of the group, the termination of most of the staff has raised
uncertainties on the going concern condition of Tendaho Project. Consequently, Management of the Group has yet to decide on the
Tendaho Project future fate of whether to sale or operate as a joint venture with other investors to determine that the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate.

Omo 5 : Factory construction of Omo 5 had been begun in November 2016 by the chinese JJIEC though it was halted due to financial
reasons. Factory construction had reached 27.7% before its was temporary suspended.Mapaae Lis yet to decide on the future fate of the

nraiact
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Events after reporting period
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ownership of sugar development projects such as Omo 1, Omo 2, Omo 3, Omo 5 , Tendaho, Arjo and Welkait. Under this new structure
.the rest of the projects and each existing factories such as Beles, Kesem, Fincha, Wonji and Methara sugar factories will have their own
legal personalities directly controlled by Ethiopian investment Holding.

Out break of civil war in norther region of Ethiopia

Since November 2020, a military conflict between the FDRE Government and TPLF has affected the northern region of the country. The
Project has been unable to assess the potential damage incurred by the Welkait Sugar Development Project located in the region due to the
project’s closure since the conflict began. Despite management's inability to access the project for assessment, physical assets of the project
valued at a total of 17.668.281.669.79 BIRR, including the factory machinery, buildings, irrigation systems, other infrastructure, and
plantation, were exposed to potential damage during the war.

Military Conflict in Oromia region of Ethiopia

Since 2020, a military conflict has arisen between the Federal Democratic Republic of Ethiopia (FDRE) Government and local rebel forces
in the Oromia region. The Arjo and Fincha Sugar Factory, situated in the area, have been significantly impacted by the conflict.
Management has conducted an assessment revealing a total loss of around Birr 281 and 245 million incurred by the factories respectively
due to vandalism perpetrated by the rebels since the onset of the conflict.

Going concern assumption

assessment made on whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Corporation's ability 1o continue as a going concern. Management's conclusions are based on the assessment made up to the forcible future.
Based on the assessment, management has identified going concern issue on Welkait, Tendahoo and Omo 5

Welkait: Management of the Project has affirmed its commitment to continue operations at the Welkait project and has therefore
determined that the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate. However. significant financial investment is deemed necessary for
completing the factory and related infrastructure, including the plantation. Pursuant to a board decision dated Sene 14, 2015 E.C.,

Concurrently, management intends to explore alternative strategies, including the potential privatization of the project through transfer to
private national or multinational investors. This strategic initiative aims to secure additional funding and enhance the project’s sustainability
beyond the current financial constraints,

Tendaho:The Subsequent event conditions of the Civil War in the Northern Region, the bad whether condition (EI Nifio effect), the
subsequent transfer of movable properties to other Factories and Projects of the group, the termination of most of the staff has raised
uncertainties on the going concern condition of Tendaho Project. Consequently, Management of the Group has yet to decide on the
Tendaho Project future fate of whether to sale or operate as a joint venture with other investors to determine that the going concern basis of
accounting is appropriate.

Omo 5 : Factory construction of Omo 5 had been begun in November 2016 by the chinese JJIEC though it was halted due to financial
reasons. Factory construction had reached 27.7% before its was temporary suspended.Mapaae Lis yet to decide on the future fate of the
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